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We have audiied, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America

and the standards applicable to financia! audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the

Comptroller Generai of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-

type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Woburn,

Massachusetts, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014 (except for the Woburn Contributory Retirement

System which is as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013), and the related notes to the financial

statements, which collectively comprise the City of Woburn, Massachusetis’ basic financial statements, and have

issued our report thereon dated March 18, 20156.

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Woburn,
Massachusetts' internal control over financial reporting {internat control} fo determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Wobumn, Massachusetts’ internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’
internal control.

A deficiency in infernal controf exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A signfficant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control thai is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
fo merit attention by those charged with governance.

QOur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal confrol that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to ba material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Woburn, Massachusetts' financial
staterments are free from matetial misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion o compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of cur tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are requtred to be reporied
under Government Auditing Standards.






Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.
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To the Honorable Mayor
City of Woburn, Massachusetts

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and materiat effect on
each of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts' major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. The City
of Woburn, Massachusetts’ major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ resuits section of
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptrolier General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program ccourred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

fn our opinion, the City of Woburn, Massachusetts complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs -
for the year ended June 30, 2014.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts is responsible for estabiishing and maintaining effective

internal controf over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
_performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City of Woburn, Massachuseits’ internal control over






compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedureas that are appropriate in the ¢ircumsiances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compiiance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of infernai control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effecliveness
of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ internal control cver compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
doss not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliahce is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a iype of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal conirol over compiiance, yet imporiani enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Qur consideration of internal contro! over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this rep'ort on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compiiance and the resulis of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.
Accordingly this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Woburn, Massachusetis, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2014 {except for the Wobum Contributory Retirement System which is as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2013}, and the related notes to the financial statements, which coliectively comprise the City
of Woburn, Massachusetts' basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated March 18, 2015,
which contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of
forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financia! statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used fo prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

%W 7 /MM Lhe
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Federal Grantor/Program Title

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:
Passed through State Department
of Elementary and Secondary Education:
Non-Cash Assistance (Commodities).
Nationai Scheol Lunch Program
Cash Assistance:
Schoot Breakfast Program
National Schoo! Lunch Program

TOTAL AGRICULTURE

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF VETERAN AFFAIRS
Passed through the State Office of Disabilities
and Community Services:
Vocational Rehabilitation for Disabled Veterans

U.5. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION:
Pasgsed through State Department
of Elementary and Secondary Education;
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies
Special Education Grants to States (IDEA, Part B)
Special Education Preschool Grants
English Language Acquisition Grants
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants
ARRA - State Fiscal Stabilization Fund Race-to-the-Top
Incentive Grants, Recovery Act

Passed through State Department
of Early Education and Care;
Special Education Preschool Grants

TOTAL EDUCATION

Passed through Massachusetts Emergency
Management Agency: '
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially
Declared Disasters)
Emergency Management Performance Granis

TOTAL HOMELAND SECURITY

TOTAL

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

City of Woburn, Massachusetts 5

Federal
CFDA
Number Expenditures

10.555 3 187,434

10.553 118,559
10.555 702,674
1,006,667
64.116 330
84.010 452 295
84.027 1,094,930
84173 7,432
84,365 30,376
84.367 121,758
84.395 168,989
84.173 32,146
1,897,928
97.036 218,346
97.042 9,000
27346
53,132,260

Reporis on Federal Award Programs






Notes to Scheduie of Expenditures of Federal Awards Year Ended June 30, 2014

Note 1 - Definition of Reporting Entity

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of alf federal financial
assistance programs of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts. All federal financial assistance received directly from
federal agencies as well as federal financial assistance passed through other governmental agencies is included
on the scheduls,

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts, are set forth below:

(a) Basis of Presentation - The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented on the
cash basis of accounting. Accordingly, grant revenues are recognized when received and expenditures when
paid,

(b) School Lunch Program (Cash Assistance) - Program expenditures represent federal reimbursement for meais
provided during the year.

{¢) School Lunch Program (Non-Cash Assistance) - Program expenditures represent the value of donated foods
received during the fiscal year.

Note 3 — Program Clusters

In accordance with Subpart A §_.105 of OMB Circular No. A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non

Profit Organizations, certain programs have been clustered in determining major programs. The following
represents the clustered programs:

CFDA

Name of Cluster/Program Number
Child Nutrition Cluster

School Breakfast Program 10.553

National Schoolf Lunch Program 10.555
Special Education Cluster

Special Education Grants to States (IDEA, Part B) 84.027

Special Education Preschecl Grants (IDEA Preschooi) 84.173
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Cosis Year Ended June 30, 2014

A. Summary of Auditors’ Results

1.

The independent auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of the City
of Woburn, Massachusetis.

No significant deficiencies refating to the audit of the basic financial statements are reported in the Report
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and On Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the City of Woburn,
Massachusetts, which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are reported in the
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federai Program; Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133.

The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the City of Woburn,
Massachusetts, expresses an unmodified opinicn.

There were no audit findings relative to the major federal award programs, as defined in Section 520(a) of
OMB A-133, that are required to be reported for the City of Woburn, Massachusetts.

The programs tested as major programs include:

CFDA
Program Tifle Number
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010
Special Education Grants to States (IDEA, Part B) 84.027
Special Education Preschool Grants (IDEA Preschool) 84173

The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.

The City of Woburn, Massachusetts was not considered to be a low-risk auditee.

B. Findings and Questioned Costs ~ Financial Statements Audit

None

C. Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Program Audit

None

D. Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

None
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We have audited the accompanying financial staterments of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014 {except for the Woburn Contributory Retirement System which is as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2013), and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City of Woburn, Massachuseits’ basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of infernal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of

-the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obiain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the.
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the

. risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due fo fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal controi relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivenass of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit aiso includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as wel as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
apinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmentat activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Woburn, Massachuseits, as of June 30, 2014 {(except for the Woburn
Coniributory Retirement System which is of and for the year ended December 31, 2013), and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with |
accounting principies generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, he presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, aithough not a part of the basic financial
statements, is reguired by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for piacing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures o the required suppiementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inguiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statemenis, and cther knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 18, 2015, on
our consideration of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that repori is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control aver financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government

Auditing Standards in considering the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ internal control over financial reporting and
compliance. :

%«m 7 4’%/*——« LLC
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Woburn, Massachusetis (City), we offer readers of these financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financlal activities for the year ended June 30, 2014. We encourage

readers to consider the information presented in this report. Ali amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are
expressed in whole dollars,

The Governmental Accouniing Standards Board (GASB) is the authoritative standard setfing body that provides
guidance on how to prepare financial statemenis in conformity with generally accepted accounting principies
{GAAP). Users of these financizal statements (such as investors and rating agencies) rely on the GASB {o
establish consistent reporting standards for alt governments in the United States. This consistent application is the

only way users (including citizens, the media, legislators and others) can assess the financial condition of one
government compared to others.

Financial Highlights

« The City's credit rating was upgraded from AaZ to Aat by Moody's investors Services.

e The asseis of the City of Woburn exceeded the liabilities at the close of the most recent year by $191.8
million (net position).

= (Of this amount, 5% or $8.7 million is unrestricted and may be used to meet the government’s on-going
obligations to citizens and creditors.

s At the close of the current year, the City's genera! fund reported an ending fund balance of $34.7 miltion.
Total fund balance represents 26% of {otal general fund expenditures.

e The City's total debt (short-term and long-term combined) decreased by $5.9 million during the year.

» The City's net other postemployment benefit (OPEB) liability increased by $4.5 million and totaled $41.7
million at year-end. ' . .

s The City estabiished a qualified OPEB trust and contributed $1.4 million to the fund in 2014. This allowed
the City to increase the discount rate used to calculate the unfunded liability from 4.5% to 5%, which

along with other valuation assumption and plan changes reduced the total unfunded liability by $82.7
million from the prior year.

Overview of the Financial Statemenis

This discussion and analysis is intended tc serve as an intreduction to the City of Woburn's basic financial
statements. These basic financial staiements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes fo the financial staiements. The government-wide financial
statements provide both long-term and shortterm information about the City as a whole. The fund financial
statements focus on the individual components of the City government, reporting the City's operations in more
detail than the government-wide statements, Both presentafions (government-wide and fund} allow the user to
address relevant questions, broaden the basis of comparison and enhance the City's accountability. An
additiona} part of the basic financial statements are the notes fo the financial statements. This report aiso
contains other required supplementary infarmation in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed io provide
readers with a broad overview of finances, in a manner similar o private-sector business.

The statement of nef position presents information on all assets and liahilities and deferred inflows/outflows of

resources, with the difference reported as nef position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may
serve as a useful indicator of whather the financial position is improving or deteriorating.
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The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the
most recent year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this

statement for some iterns that will only result in cash flows in future periods {e.g., uncollected taxes and earned
but unused vacation feave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions that are principally supported by taxes and
intergovernmentat revenues (governmental activities) from cther functions that are intended to recover alfora
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities include general government, public safety, education, public works, human services, culture and
recreation, and interest. The business-type activities include the activities of water and sewer operations.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Woburn itself (known as the primary
government), but also a legally separate public employee retirement system. Financial information for this
component unit is reported separately within the fiduciary fund statements.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Fund accounting is used fo ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-reiated legal requirements. All of the funds can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financiai statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financia! statements, governmental fund statemenis focus on near-term inflows of spendable resources, as well
as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating & government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financiai statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Woburn adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains one type of proprietary fund.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The City accounts for its water and sewer activities as an enterprise fund.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources
of those funds are not available to support the City’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additiona! information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
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Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. The
City of Woburn's total assets exceeded total liabifities by $181.8 million at the close of 2014,

Net position of $167.3 million {87%) reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.q., land, land improvements,
buildings, vehicles, machinery and equipment, building improvements, and infrastructure) less any related debt
used to acquire those assets that are still ouistanding. The City uses these capital assets {o provide services to
citizens; consequently, these assets are not avaiiable for future spending. Although the investment in its capital
assets is reported net of iis related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the governmental net position, $15.7 miliion (8%), representis resources that are subjeci to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position $8.7 miliion
{5%} may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current year, the City of Waoburn is able to report positive talances in two out of three categories
of net position for the governmental activities and all three categories, both for the City as a whole, as weli as for
iis separate business-type activities.

The governmental and business-type activities of the City are presenied below.

Governmental Activities

The City of Woburt's assets exceedead liabiiities for governmental activities by $150.3 million at the close of 2014.

2014 2013
Assefs:
CUITENE B8 SBE S, . ittt e e e e $ 652582427 $ 82,577,128
Noncurrent assets (excluding capitall.. .. ... 1,047,083 1,027 618
Capital assets not being depreciated......... P 22,068,936 22,715,253
Capital assets, net of accumutated depreciation...................... 159,730,861 159,635,296
] o= LI T3 1= T 248,099,307 245,855,293
Liahilities:
Current liabilities (excluding debt). ... 8,020,807 6,505,276
Noncurrent liabilities (excluding debt).............coov v, 46,138,442 41,675,140
Current debl. o 3,320,219 3,319,538
NonCUrrent debl. 40,363,467 43,683,686
Total Habilities. oo i rirsirrrrasesrrrrererrssasnrsssrarares 97,842,935 95,233,640
Net Position:
Net investmentin capifal assels... ... 138,862,748 136,675,902
RESHI IR . o e e e e - 15,727,698 14,988,703
et e o e {4,334 074} . {1,040,852) .
Total net PosSItIoN..v v s s rrerararess: 3 150,256,372 $ 150,621,653
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2014 2013

Program Revenues:

Charges fOr SBIVICES. .. ...ttt e s e eae L] 6,547,904 $ 5,774,800
Operating grants and contributions...............en 28,616,562 27,395,281
Capital grants and confributions..............coee 2,621,398 2,983 597

General Revenues: _
Real estate and personal property taxes,

net of tax refunds payable........o 88,791,408 86,893,535
=N 1= - YO PO UU PO TP 899,786 894,259
Motor vehicle 8XCIBE TBXES. ... vrt e et e e e e e 5,789,059 5,420,734
HOtel/MOtEl 18X, .. ot e e e e s 2,688,033 2,367,457
T 1 =) COT TR TP 888,078 892,407
Penaities and interest ontBXES... .o 499,608 1,080,186
Nonrestricted grants... ... 5,537,021 5,533,108
Unrestricted investment INCome. .. ..o 1,289,082 755,988
Gain on sale of capital assets......... - 308,745
MISCEHAN@OUS. ... 93,710 72,376
TOLa] FEVETUES .uuivrrerrrsrrrrsresicireesransannrarrasassrensrnsasns 144,261,643 140,390,463
Expenses:
General gQovernmMENt. . ... 5,483,993 5,837,324
Public safety............. Ee e et 27,697,116 28,172,198
Eare L o= 1100) 1 TUURU TR POV 94,700,433 92,615,488
P WOTKS . L et e oo e e e e 12,174,816 11,800,068
T LI 8 L POV PR PR 1,753,846 1,790,945
Culture and reCreatioN. .. ..o e e 2,866,630 2,725,704
A =1 AU ORI 1,491,776 1,588,884
Total EXPENSES ... raceinnrriisis s iarra s ra e rensrsn i 148,168,610 144,530,609
Increase in net position before transfers.........o.ciinnn (1,906,267) {4,140,148)
LR 1] (2] £ TSR tnavrrevaANtearasnnrnraeranns 1,541,688 1,505,502
Change in net position........cuvviivmmcn (365,281) {2,634,644)
Net position at beginning of the year.............ioccnn, 150,621,653 153,256,297
Net position at end of the year..........ccooiiiicninnn, $ 150,256,372 $ 150,621,653

Governmental expenses totaled $146.2 miliion of which $37.8 million (26%) was directly supported by program
revenues consisting of charges for services, operating and capital grants and contributions. General revenues
totaled $106.5 million, primarily coming from property taxes, motor vehicle excise taxes, hotel/motel taxes and
~ non-restricted state aid.

Governmental net position decreased by $365,000 during the current year. The primary components.of this
decrease included a $4.5 million increase in the OPEB tiability and a $1.8 million decrease from general fund
budgetary results. These decreases were offset by the recognition of $2.6 million of capital grants and a $3.0
million increase in the stabilization fund that was due to a budgeted transfer from the general fund.
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Business-type Activities

For the City's business-type activities, assats exceeded liabilities by $41.5 million at the close of 2014,

Assets:
e A8, i e e
Noncurrent assets {excluding capital)
Capital assets not being depreciated.............
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation......................
Total 88T it re e v s s s

Liabilities:
Current liabilities {excluding debt)...........o
Noncurrent fiabilities (excluding debi)... ...
CUrrEnt debl. e
Nancurrent debt. ..o
Total [iabilitles. ..o e e e

Net Position:
Netf investment in capital @ssets... ... i
Unrestricted

Total pet posHion.....coiii i

Program Revenues:
Charges for ServiCeS. ... cov i
Operating grants and contributions...........oo e
Capitai grants and contributions. ... .
TOLa] TEVENUES . oot iriviiinn s s re s e asenss ra v s e branns

Expenses:
T AN SO WO . e e e e

Increase in net position before transfers........cvoiviriciinnniarn

Transfers. ... iuiaseiniomgoins
Change in net position......ooo v
Net position at beginning of the year.......o.oiiiiiiiinenn

Net position at end of the year..............coviniiv e,

2014 2013
18,995,704 § 22,981,112
615,884 895,160
415,240 415,240
53,018,293 50,019,264
73,085,121 74,110,776
1,033,024 912,090
369,259 394,466
2,594,187 2,563,879
07,548,085 30,142,272
31,544,555 34,012,707
08,474,727 22,492,051
13,025,839 17,608,018
41,500,566 $ 40,098,069
19,704,495 $ 17,740,229
84,990 95,646
- 468,133
19,785,485 18,304,008
16,845,302 15,512,226
2,944,183 2,791,782
{1,541,686)  (1,505,502)
1,402,497 1,286,280
40,098,069 38,811,789

41,500,566 $ 40,098,069

Business-type net position of $28.5 million (69%) represents the net investment in capital assets while $13.0

million (31%) is unrestricted.

The water and sewer enterprise fund net position increased by $1.4 million in the current year. This increase is
orimarily due to a $987,000 excess of debt principal payments, raised in the rates, over depreciation expense and

unexpended capital appropriations.

City of Woburn, Massachusetts 8
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

" As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal

reguirements,

Governmental funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outfiows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing financing requirements.
In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available

" for spending at the end of the year.

As of the end of the current year, governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $50.6 mitlion.

This was comprised of the general fund and nonmajor fund balances iotaling $34.7 milfion and $15.9 mitlion,
respectively.

The general fund is the chief operating fund. At the end of the current year, unassigned fund batance of the
general fund was $28.8 million, while total fund balance was $34.7 milion. As a measure of the general fund’s
liguidity, it may be usefu} to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 20% of the total generai fund expenditures, while total fund
balance represents 26% of that same amount. Committed fund balance totals %6.0 million and consists of the
affordable housing stabilization fund totaling $3.0 million and unexpended capital articles totaling $3.0 million that
were carried forward to the subsequent year. Assigned fund balance totais $1.9 million and consists of
unexpended appropriations that were encumbered to be expended in the subsequent year.

The general fund increased by $781,000, which is due fo better than expected revenue coilections totaling $4.2
million and unexpended appropriations totaling $864,000. These increases were offset by the use of free cash to
fund transfers to the Whispering Hills capital project fund and the debt service fund totaling $410,000 and $2.1

million, respectively. The City also contributed $1.4 million from the general fund Medicare reserve balance to the
OPEB trust fund.

The State highway grants fund recognized $731,000 of capitat grant revenue and incurred $731,000 million of
road improvement costs.

The Goodyear School capital project fund recognized $739,000 of additional school construction assistance and
$692,000 of additional school construction costs in 2014, The construction project was substantially completed at
year-end.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The $12.1 million (10%} increase between the original budget and the final amended budget was primarily due to

increases in appropriations for public safety, employee benefits, capital outiay, debt service and fransfers {o other
funds.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. In conjunction with the annual operating budget, the City annuaily prepares a capital budget for
the upcoming year and a five-year Capitat Improvement Plan (CIP) that is used as a guide for future capital
expenditures.

The City's net investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2014,
amounts to $235.2 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
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construction in progress, land improvements, buildings, building improvements, vehicles, machinery and
equipment and infrastructure,

The total current year additions to the governmental investment in capital assets was $3.4 million. Machinery and
equipment additions totaled $997,000 and the most significant assets included in the category are the purchase of
a new fire truck and a new Department of Public Works (DPW) street sweeper. Vehicle additions totaled
$487,000 and included police, fire, inspections and DPW vehicies. Current year infrastructure additions totaled

$1.9 million (net of amounts transferred from constructicn in progress) and related to street and cemetery
repaving.

The $4.6 million in water and sewer additions are mainly aftributable to infrastructure improvements that include
cleaning and relining water lines, pump station improvements and installation of new water and sewer lines.

Debt Administration. The City's credit rating was upgraded from Aa2 to Aa1 by Moody's Investors Services.
The City continues to maintain strong market access for both note and bond sales,

Outstanding long-term debt of the general government totaled $43.7 million, of which $34.2 million is related to
school projects and $9.5 million relates 1o various other capital projects.

The water and sewer enterprise fund has $30.1 million of outstanding long-term debt, which is fully supported by
rates and does not rely on a general fund subsidy.

Please refer fo the notes to the financial statements for further discussion of the major capital and debt activity.
Requests for Information

This financial report is designed fo provide a general overview of the City of Woburn's finances for all those with
an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or

requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the City Auditor, City Of'fzces 10 Commaon
Street, Woburn, Massachusetts 01801,
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2014

Prirnary Governmert

Governmenial Business-iype
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
CURRENT:
Cash and cagh equivalentS..........ooo oo e v eeieens 3§ 37734938 & Q478684 5 47,213,823
Investments 18,227,804 - 18,227,904
Receivables, net of allowance for uncoliectibles:
Real esiate and personal proparty t@xes........ ... 712,329 - 712,328
Tax and utility liens... 3,017,488 100,165 3,117,663
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes e 438,147 - 438,147
User fees... . R - 8,718,400 8,718,400
Departmental anci other 1,414 251 - 1,414,251
lntergovernmentai...............,,,,,A......{..,.H,.‘....... 3,707,359 598,455 4,405,814
NONCURRENT:
Receivables, net of allowance for uncoilectibles:
Real estate tax deferrals... ..o 344 219 - 344,319
INMErgOVEINMENEAL.. .0 e - 615,884 615,884
Tax foreclosures... . . 702,784 - 702,764
Capital assets not bemg deprectased 22 068,038 415,240 22,484,176
Capital assets, net of accumutaied depreciation......... 188,730,861 53,018,293 212 749,154
TOTAL ASSETS o it terree ot e reeie e bas e e s 248,009,307 73,045,121 321,144,428
LIABILITIES
CURRENT:
Warrants payabiB... ..o e 1,283,632 640,268 1,823,800
Actrued payroll. ... 959,801 - 969,901
Tax refunds payable . 3,372,000 - 3,372,000
Accruad interest.. ... e 293,975 332,756 626,731
Payroll withholdings........oo i 14,771 - 14,771
Abandoned property... 138,528 - 138,528
Compensated absences.. 1,847,000 60,000 2,007,000
Unamortized premiums on boncis payabi . - 4,690 4,580
Bonds 0ayable. .o 3,320,219 2,689 597 5,809,816
NONCURRENT:
Compensated abSENCES ... .o e e s 4,877,000 178,000 4,855 000
Other postemployment benefits........ 41,461,442 191,259 44,652,7M
Unamortized premiums on bonds payable................. - 14,188 14,188
Bonds payablg... .o 40,363,467 27,533,897 67,887,364
TOTAL LIABILITIES .. e e e 97,842,935 31,544,565 120,387,480
NET POSITION
Net investmant in.capltal assels............o 138,862,748 28474727 167,337,475
Restricted for
B BBIVIOR. . et ettt vtteeree eester b et b b bae e e 523,563 - 623,563
Permaneant funds:
Expendable... 7,267,835 - 7,267,835
NonexpandablB... ..o i e e 2,703,225 - 2,703,225
Gifts and grantS... oo oo ee i e 5,133,075 - £,133,075
LIAPESETICIEC . .ot et ir teeaee semrre s e mae b ot g e s {4,334,074) 13,025,839 8,891,785
TOTAL NET POSITION ..o e e anine s § 150,266,372 § 41,500,566 $ 191,756,938

See notes to basic financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2614

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Crants and Net (Expense)
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Coniributions Contributions Revenue
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General government................ $ 5483993 § 639,488 § 633,330 3 - % (4,211,177)
Publicsafety.......ccooviiiiinnn. 27687116 3,463,883 1,467,157 71,000 (22.694,976)
Education......c..ooociieien 94,700,433 2,189,734 25,772,019 824,137 (65,934,543)
PUuBic works.....ooviiivvnvrrier e 12,174,816 178,705 261,645 1,726,258 {10,007,207)
Human services............... e 1,753,846 85,598 87,135 - {1,600,715}
Cuiture and recreation.............. 2,866,630 9,000 415,278 - (2,442 354)
Interest..........ccoooo e, 1,491,776 - - - (1,491,778)
Total Governmental Activities. .. 146,168,610 6,547,904 28,616,562 2,521,396 = (108,382,748)
Business-Type Activitias:
Water and Sewer..........ceviees 16,845,302 16,704,495 84,890 -
Total Primary Government...... $ 163013912 $ 26252399 § 28701552 $ 2621396 $°{(105/438;565)
See notes to basic financial statements. (Continued)
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES {Continued)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Changes in net position:

Net (expense) revenue from previous page.............

General reverues;

Real estate and personal property taxes,

net of tax refunds payable.........

Tax Hens. .o et i
Motor vehicle excise taxes..........
Hotel/moteltax. .. ...t

Meals fax. ..o e

Penalties and interest on taxes....

Grants and contributions not restr
specific programs....................

cted {o

Unrestricted investment income............oo

MisceHlaneous. ..........cooee i vvnnens
Transfers, Nef.........ccoeviiciiiienner oo

Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net position.............

Net Position:
Beginning of year..............col

Endofyear. ..o,

See notes to basic financial statements.

City of Woburn, Massachu_sétts

Primary Government

Governmental

Activities

Business-Type

Activities Total

5 (108;382,748)

|(105,438,565).

88,791,408 - 88,791,408
899,786 - 899,786
5,789,059 - 5,789,059
2,688,033 - 2,688,033
888,076 - 888,076
489,606 - 499 808
5,537,021 - 5,537,021
1,288,082 - 1,289,082
93,710 - 893,710
1,541,688 {1,541,686) -
108,017 467 (1,541,886) 108,475,781
(365,281) 1,402,497 1,037,216
150,621,653 40,088,069 190,719,722
5 150,256,372 3 41,500,566 § 191,756,938
{Congcluded)
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 3C, 2014

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents.......................

invesiments................

Receivables, net of uncollectibles;
Real estate and personal property taxes..
Real estate tax deferrals...........o..oees

Taxliens.............

Motar vehicle and other excise taxes.......
Departmental and other........o.ooooo v
intergovernmental.................... e
Tax foreclosures.........coo i
Due from other funds.........ooovvvviiiin e

TOTALASSETS .ot e

LIABILITIES

Warrants payable.................oci
Accruad payrofl.. .o

Tax refunds payable............

Payroll withholdings. ... e
Abandoned property..........ocoi e
Busto otherfunds.........ccocvii i

TOTALLIABILITIES .

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavaitable revenues.. ... vceiee s

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable. ...
Restricied. . ...
Committed......
Assigned.. ..o
Unassigned......cco i i

TOTAL FUND BALANCES ...

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES. .. ...

See notes to basic financial statements.

City of Woburn, Massalchusetrs

State Nonmajor Total
Highway Governmental Governmental

General Grants Funds Funds
$ 29,506,128 3 - § 8,138,811 § 37,734,939
10,368,125 - 7,858,779 18,227,804
712,329 - - 712,329
344 319 - - 344,319
3,017,488 - “ 3,017 498
438,147 - “ 438,147
18,201 - 1,396,050 1,414,251
- 3,204,243 503,118 3,707,359
702,764 - - 702,764
48,517 - - 48,517
45,247 028 3,204,243 17,806,758 66,348,027
1,082,425 35,682 165,624 1,283,631
969,301 - “ 969,901
3,372,000 - - 3,372,000
14,771 - - 14,771
139,528 . - 138,528
- 48,517 - 48 517
5,578,625 84,098 165,624 5,828,348
4,850,252 3,120,144 1,814,086 9,884 482
- - 2,703,225 2,703,225
- - 13,213,821 13,213,821
6,052 487 oo - - 6,052,467
1,885,220 - - 1,895,220
26,770,464 - - 26,770,464
34,718,151 - 15,017,048 50,835,197
$ 45247028 $ 3,204,243 $ 17,806,756 $ " 86,348,027
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RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TOTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2014

Total governmental fund balances. .. ... $ 50,635,197

Capital assets {net) used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported inthe funds... ..o 181,799,797

Accounts receivable are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefors, are unavailable inthe funds... ...l . 9,884 482

in the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in governmental funds interest is not reported untit due..........oo e (293,978)

Leng-term liabiiities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds:

BOnds PaYADI.. . ..o e e e e e s e (33,683,688)
COmMpPEnSated ADSBIMICES .. 1. ettt et e vt i e e {6,624,000)
Other postemployment benafits... ... (41,461 442)

Nat effect of reporting fong-ferm liabilities. ... (01,769,128)

Net position of governmental activilies...... ... $ 150,256,372

Sea notes to basic financial statements.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2614

State Nonmigjor Total
Highway Geodyear Governmental Governmental
Genaral Grants School Funds Funds
- REVENUES:
Reai estate and personal property taxes,
net oftax refunds.......o $ 88,748,345 - - - % B8,748,245
TAX HBMS . ettt etcre i e cen e e e e 808,784 - - - 809,784
Motor vehicle excise taxes........ooe i, 6,088,101 - - - 5,088,101
Hotedmotel 1ax. .o 2,688,033 - - - 2,688,033
Meals (X, .o e 888,076 - - - 888,076
Penaliies and Interest on taxes 514,469 - - - 514,469
Intesgavernmental..........ocoen s 27,021,620 730,514 730,058 5,113,078 33,604,270
Deparimental and other... 1,882,134 - - 5,280,242 8,172,376
ConTBUHONS ..o et e e e eeaean 77,935 - - 268,108 346,044
INVEStMENE NCOME. oo e e 582,784 - - 674,546 1,257,330
TOTAL REVENUES. ... 129,302,281 730,614 738,058 12,345,975 143,117,828
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government.........ocoovevvviivieeanns 3,752,404 - - 34,436 3,786,840
PUBHC SAIELY. .o e e e 16,477,096 - - 2,496,975 18,974,072
Education.........coo e 52,641,435 - 661,962 6,776,015 80,109,412
PUble WOrKS.o e e e 8,742,083 730,514 - 1,098,165 10,567,762
Human services.................. b 1,354,862 - - 125,923 1,480,785
Culture and recreation... 1,883,111 - - 221,644 2,114,755
Penslon benefits..... 18,280,798 - - - 18,280,798
Employes Benefils......ooiiiiiiin e 19,148,374 - - 19,149,374
State and county charges... 3,280,365 . - - 3,280,265
Capital outlay........ooo i 2,026,617 - - - 2,026,617
[ebt servica:
Princinal.....covi i s 3,319,537 - - - 3,319,537
IBrEST e e 1,631,384 - - - 1,631,394
TOTAL EXPENDITURES............ [P 132,546,076 730,514 541,962 10,750,159 144,721,711
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
QVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES. ... (3,246,755) - 47,096 1,595,818 (1,603,883)
OTHER FINANCING SQURECES {(LISES):
Transfers in............ e 6,508,536 - - 2,480,308 8,988,844
Transfers out {2,480,308) - {893,848) {4,073,002) (7,447,158)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) ... 4,028,228 - {893,848) (1,592,684) 1,541,686
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES ... .. 781,433 - {846,752) 3,122 (62,197)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR ..ot i e c e memrice s 33,938,718 - 846,782 15,913,924 50,697,304
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR......cco e, $ 34,718,151 - - 15,817,048 % 50,635,197
Sea notes to basic financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds..................... F PR

Governmental funds report capital cutlays as expenditures, However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capial OULAY. .. ...t e et e s e
DEPreciation EXEENSB... .. oiet e et e e

Net effect of reporing capital @ssets. ... i

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are unavaileble in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various
types of accounts receivabie (Le., reai estate and personal property, motor
vehicle excise, stc.) differ between the two statements. This amount represents
the net change in unavailable FeVeNUE.......oo e

The issuance of fong-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financlal
resources to governmanial funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the finandgial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmentai funds
report the effect of prermiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
Statement of Activities.

Debt service principal payments........ooovoocvr i TP

Some expensas reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in the governmental funds,

Net change in compensated absences acerual..........coo i
Net change in acerued interest on fong-term debt... ...
Net change in other postemploymentbenefit..........

Net effect of recording long-term liahilities ...

Change in nat position of governmental activities. ...

See noies to basic financial statements.
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$ (62,197)
3,416,552
(3,867,304)
(450,752)
1,143 815
3,319,537
73,000
139,618
(4,528,302)
(4,315,684)
$  (365281)
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT CF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2014

Business-type
Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Water and Sewer
ASBETS
CURRENT;
Cash and cash equivalents.. SO ROPE. 9,478,884
Receivables, net of al]owance fos uncol} ect:bles
Ly 1o o O S P PP 100,168
U LT £ TP 8,718,400
eI GOVEIMIEINER ot crt vt e i e e e e e 698,455

Total CUIMENE BBSEIS . it v v e e e e s s aa e e 18,895,704

NONCURRENT:
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectihles:
intergovernmentai... 515,884
Capital assets not i:emg deprec:lated 415,240
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreclamn... 53,018,203

Total NoncUTTENT ASSEIS. .. .ot iie e e e v e e e i 54,049,417
T T AL A S E T .. it v st e e e s aee v ae s e e s e e e 73,045,121

LIABILITIES
- CURRENT: .
Wamants Pavable. .o o s e e e 540,268
Accrued interest... 332,756
Compensated absences 60,000
Unameortized premiums on bonds and notes payable......................,...... 4,580
Bonds payable... ... 2,589,697

Total current liahillties. .. ..o 3.62?‘211

NONCURRENT:
Compensated absences... 178,000
Other postemployment benefzts .. .. 181,259
Unamortized premiums on bonds and notes payabie... TR 14,188
BONGS PAYADIE. ..o e e e e e 27,533,397

Total noncurment Habillies. .. oo e v s e 27,917,344
O I I PSR 31,544 555

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital 888818, oo e 28,474,727
oot e S TR 13,025,838

TOTAL NET POSITION......oi it e e e e eieeee o B 41,500,565

See notes to basic financiat statements.
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‘ PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES N NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Business-type
Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Water and Sewer

OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for Services ... $ 18,653,413
U TIBNS . ot e e e e e 1,151,082
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES ... ' 19,704,495
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of services and administration ... 1,696,628
VYR A ASSESEIMBNL. o i e 12,683 458
DIEPIECIALION. . o et ettt 1,571,596
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES ... i 15,951,683
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)...o e 3,752,812
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES).
INTErESt @XPEMSE. .. ..ottt et e (893,619)
Intergovernmental...........o. e 84,990
TOTAL NONCPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET......ooooo (808,629)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFCRE
TRANSFERS

................................................................ 2,944,183
TRANSFERS:

Transfers OUL.........ocooiiii i (1,541,688)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION .. .o 1,402,497

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING CF YEAR......ocl 40,098,069

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR. ... ] 41,500,566

See notes fo basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 3C, 2014

Business-type
Activities -

Ente!Erise Funds
Water and Sewer
20 SNd wewer

CASH FLOWS FROM QOPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipis from customers and users

.................................................................... $ 18,485 557
Payments io L (13,474,556)
Payments fo STPIOYRE ot (784,868)
. —_— AO5,568)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES, . 5226 143
—02E0, 14
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
i ——— {1,541 ,6862
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital BB {4.570,625)
Principal ot oI LT (2,481,237
interest SIS LT (838,737
NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.............. (7‘89{3,599!
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH BQUIVALENTS ..o : (4,206,142)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 13,684,828
' — F005,826
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR. et $ 9,478,584
RECONCILATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income U088 v 3 3,752,812
- N - . M
Adjustrments o reconcile operating income (loss) o net
cash from operating activities:
R e 1.571,596
Changes in asseis and liabilities:
Utiiity liens........... T 141,998
o s ' {360,927)
o PRI s : 143,870
Accruedcompensated absences : 6,000 .
Other postemployment benefits........ .. ’ [29,207)
OSSN, 1,473,334 A
e 0,90
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES... ... . 3 5,226,143 7
e el T :
NONCASH INVESTING CAPITAL. AND FINANCING ACTIMITIES:
intergovernmantal S 3 182,480
See notes to basic financial statements, ' R
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FIDUCIARY EUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2014

Pension
Trust Fund Private
(as of December 31, QOPEB Purpose Agency
2013} Trust Fund Trust Funds Funds
ASSETS
CURRENT:
Cash and cash egquivalents........o e $ 2,751,308 % 1,356,207 & 76,701 % 435,866
TRt Lha L30T O OO TP PP 122,519,537 - - -
interest and dividends 88,150 - - -
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles: ‘
Intergovernmental.........covi 20,824 - - -
T AL A S ET S e e e 125,379,817 1,358,907 76,701 435,966
LIABILITIES
Warrants payable.......... 104,244 - - 2,763
Liahilities due deposiors. ..o “ - - 433,203
TOTAL LIABIITIES . i e 104,244 - - 435,966
NET POSITION
Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes.... $ 125275573 % 1,356,907 § 76,701 % -

Sea notes to basic financiat statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Pension
Trust Find Private
(as of December 31, OPEB Purpose
2013) Trust Fund Trust Funds

ADDITIONS:
Contributions:

o o O O U U UPR USRS 5338,819 & 1,356,907 -
B OYEE e 2,931,825 - -

Total contrbulioNS....oo oo 8,270,644 1,356,907 -

Net investment income (loss): .
Net change in fair value of investments......... ... 17,137,739 - -
IErESt 3,845,718 - 8

Total investmeant income (1088}, ocoviii i e 20,783,455 - g

Less: investment eXPensSE ... . i e (902,144) -

Net investment INCoME (1055 .. v ivi v e s cee e e e oaes 19,881,311 - 5

INtergoVaIMIMENIAL. ot e e e e e 258,393 -

Transfers fromothersystems... ..., 128 252 - -

TOTAL ADDITHONS. ..o i rireem v 28,538,600 1,356,907 8

DEDUCTIONS:
AMINIS RO L s e e vt s et v s e e e e e e e 348,123 - -
Transfers 10 other SYSIEMS. ... e e v e e e 488,710 - -
Retirement benefits and refunds... ... 11,099,367 - -
Educational scholarships...... .. - - 120
Y ot =T =101 L= T S PP PN 36,085 -

TOTAL DEDUTTIONS ... e e 11,873,275 - 120

CHANGE INNET POSITION. ..o e e 16,568,325 1,356,507 {(114)

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING GF YEAR... ... oo i e 108,709,248 - 76,815

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR ..o 3 1262758678 & 1,356,907 76,701

Bee notes to basic financial statements.
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Notes io Basic Financiaj Statemenis Year Ended June 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

‘The accompanying basic financiai statements of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts {City) have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the recognized standard-setting body for establishing

governmental accounting and financial reporting principies. The significant accounting policies are described
herein.

A Reporting Entity

The City is a municipal corporation that is governed by an elected Mayor and City Council (Councif).

For financial reporting purposes, the City has included all funds, crganizations, agencies, boards, commissions
and institutions. The City has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable
as well as other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the City are such that
exclusion would cause the basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. As required by GAAP,
these basic financial statements present the City {primary government) and its component units. Cne entity has

been included as a component unit in the reporting entity, because of the significance of its operational and/or
financial relationship.

Component Unit Presented as a Fiducfary Fund ~ The following component unit is presented as a Fiduciary Fund
of the primary government due to the nature and significance of retationship between the City and the component

unit.,

The Woburn Contributory Retirement System (System) was established to provide retirement benefits to
City employees, the Waoburn Housing Authority employees, and their beneficiaries. The System is
governed by a five-member board comprised of the City Auditor (ex-officio), two members elected by the
System'’s participants, one member appoeintéd by the Mayor and one member appointed by the Board
members. The System is presented using the accrual basis of accounting and is reported as a pension
trust fund in the fiduciary fund financiai statements.

The System did not issue a separate audited financial statement. The System issues a publicly available un-
audited financial report in accordance with guidelines established by the Commonwealth of Massachusstts’
{Commonwealth) Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC). That report may be
obtained by contacting the System located at 10 Common Street, Woburn, Massachusetis 01801.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Govermment-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., statement of net position and the statement of changes in net
position) report information on alf of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component
units. Governmental activities, which are primarily supported by faxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which are supported primarily by user fees and charges.
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Netes to Basic Financial Statements ‘ Year Ended June 30, 2014

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
gevernmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and displayed in a single column,

Major Fund Criteria
Major funds must be reported if the following criteria are met:

o |f toial assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources,
revenhues, or expenditures/expenses of an individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least
10 percent of the corresponding element (assets and deferred outfiows of resources, liabilities
and deferrad inflows or resources, ete.) for all funds of that categery or type (total governmental
or total enterprise funds), and

= If the fotal assets and deferred ouiflows of resources, iizbilities and deferred inflows of resources,
revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund or enterprise fund are at
least & percent of the corresponding element for alt governmental and enterprise funds combined.

Additionally, any other governmental or enterprise fund that management believes is particularly significant to the
basic financial statements may be reported as a major fund.

Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

C. Measurement chus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting, Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liabilities are incurred. Real estate and personal property taxes are recoghized as revenues in
the year for which they are levied, Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a particular function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues inciude the following:
» Charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or direcily benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment

« Grants and contributions restricted to mesting the opersticnal requirements of a particular fungtion or
segment.

+ Crants and contributions restricted fo meeting the capiial requirements of a particular function or
segment.

Taxes and other items not identifiable as program revenues are reported as general revenues.
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Notes o Ba_sic Financial Siatemenis Year Ended June 30, 2014

For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the government-wide financial
statements. However, the effect of interfund services provided and used between functions is not eliminated as

the elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the functions
affected.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources measurement
focus and the madified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of
the transaction can be deterrmined and available means coliectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liabiiity is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain
compensated absences, claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be
liquidated with current expendable availabie resources.

Real estate and personal property tax revenues are considered available if they are collected within 80 days after
year-end. investment income is susceptible to accrual. Other receipts and tax revenues become measurable
and avaitabie when the cash is received arid are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
is met. Expenditure driven grants recognize revenue when the qualifying expendifures are incurred and ali other
grant requirements are met.

The following major governmental funds are reported:

The general fund is the primary operating fund. It is used to account for all financial resources, except those that
are required to be accounted for in another fund. Stabilization fund is also classified as part of the general fund.

The State highway grants fund is used to account for and report costs incurred with the construction and
reconstruction of City owned roadways. Costs charged to the fund are subject to reimbursemeant by the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

The Goodyear Schoo! fund is used to account for financial resources associated with the construction of the new
Goodyear Elementary School.

The non-maior governmenta! funds consist of special revenue, debt service, capital project and permanent funds
that are aggregated and presented in the nonmajor governmental funds column on the governmental funds
financial statements. The following describes the general use of these fund types:

The special revenue fund is used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than permanent funds or capital projects.

The debt service fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditure for principal and interest.
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Npies to Basic Financial Statemenis Year Ended June 30, 2014

The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned o expenditure for capital outlays, inctuding the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other
capital assets of the governmental funds.

The permanent fund is used o account for and report financial rescurces that are legally restricted to the extent
that only earnings, not orincipal, may be used for purposes that support the governmental programs.

Proprietary fund financiat siatements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the lighilities are incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the
proprietary funds principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The City's proprietary funds include the water and sewer enterprise fund which is used to account for the water
and sewer activities.

Fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accruai basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for
others that cannot be usad to support the governmental programs.

The following fiduciary fund types are reported:

The pension trust fund is used to account for the activities of the System, which accumulates resources to provide
pension benefits to eligible retirees and their beneficiaries.

The other postemployment benefif trust fund accumulates resources to provide funding for future OPER (other
postemployment benefits) liabilities.

The private-purpose trust fund is used to account for frust arrangements, other than those properly reported in the
pension trust fund or permanent fund, under which principal and investment income exclusively benefit
individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

The agency fund is used to account for assets held in a purely custodial capacity.

D. Cash and investments

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statemenis

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisifion. [nvestments are carried at fair vaiue.

E. Accounts Receivable

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The recognition of revenue refated to accounis receivable reported in the government-wide financial statements
and the proprietary funds and fiduciary funds financial statements are reported under the accrual basis of
accounting. The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the governmental funds
financial statements are reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting.
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Notes to Basig Financial Statemenis Year Ended June 30, 2014

Real Estate, Personal Property Taxes, Tax Liens and Tax Foreclosures

' Real estate and personal property taxes are levied and based on values assessed on January 1% of every year.

Assessed values are established by the Board of Assessors for 100% of the estimated fair market value. Taxes
are due on August 1%, November 1%, February 1% and May 1% and are subject to penalties and interest if they are

not paid by the respective due date. Real estate and personal property taxes levied are recorded as receivables
in the year of the lavy.

Real estate tax liens are imposed in October of each year on delinquent properties and are recorded ag
receivables in the year they are processed. Real estate tax liens may be subject to foreclosure if the tax liens are
not paid in accordance with the pericd required by the law (M.G.L, Ch.60, §50). Foreclosure proceedings are
processed by the Treasurer or other tax lien custodian. Foreclosed properties can then be sold through
advertised public auction or held for use by the City.

Real estate receivables are secured via the tax lien process and are considered 100% collectible. Accordingly,
an allowance for uncollectibles is not reported.

Personal property taxes cannot be secured through the lien process. The allowance of uncollectibles is estimated
based on historical trends and specific account analysis.

Motor Vehicle and Other Excise Taxes

Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annuatly for each vehicle registered and are recorded as receivables in
the year of the levy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of vehicles registered and the

fair values of those vehicles. The tax calculation is the fair value of the vehicle multiplied by $25 per $1,000 of
value.

The allowance for uncollectibles is estimated based on historical trends and specific account analysis.

Water and Sewer User Fees

User fees for residential and small commercial users are levied semi-annuatly while the top 20 commercial users
are levied monthly. Residential user fees are based on flat rates while commercial user fees are based on
individual meter readings. All user fees are subject to penalties and interest if they are not paid by the respective
due date. Unbilled user fees are estimated at year-end and are recorded as revenue in the current period, Water
and sewer liens are processed in December of every year and included as a lien on the property owner’s tax bili,
Water and sewer fees and liens are recorded as receivables in the year of the levy.

Since the receivables are secured via the lien process, these accounts are considered 100% collectible and
therefore do not repart an allowance for uncollectibles. -

Departmental and Other

Devparimentat and other receivables censist primarily of ambulance charges and are recorded as receivables in
the year accrued. The allowance of uncollectibles is estimated based on histaricatl trends and specific account
analysis.
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Notes to Basic Finangial Statements ‘ Year Ended June 30, 2014

Intergovernmental

Various federal and state grants for operating and capital purposes are applied for and received annuaily. For
non-expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded as soen as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met. For expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded when the qualifying
expenditures are incurred and all other grant requirements are met.

These receivables are considered 100% collectible and therefore do not report an allowance for uncaliectibles.
F. inventories

Governmeni-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

inventories are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. Such inventories are not material in total to the
government-wide and fund financial statements, and therefore are not reported.

G. Capital Assets

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Capital assets, which include land, land improvements, buildings, building improvements, vehicles, machinery and
equipment, and infrastructure {e.g., roads, water mains, sewer mains, and simiiar items), are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activity column of the government-wide financial statementis, and the
proprietary fund financial statements. Capitai assets are recorded at historical cost, or at estimated historical
cost, if actual historical cost is not availabie. Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market
value af the date of donation. Except for the capital assets of the governmental activities column in the
government-wide financial statements, construction period interest is capitalized on constructed capital assets.

All purchases and construction costs in excess of state recommended capitalization thresholds are capitalized at
the date of acquisition or construction, respectively, with expected usefui fives of greater than one year.

- Capital assets (excluding kand and construction in progress) are depreciated on a straight-iine basis. The
estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows:

Estimated
Useful
Life
Capital Asset Type (in years)
Land improvements. ... 20
BUildings. ... 40
Building improvements................o 20
VBRICIES . 5-10
Machinery and equipmenti..................... 5-10
infrastructure............... e 10-40

lives are not capitatized and are treated as expenses when incurred, improvernents are capitalized.
Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Capital asset costs are recorded as expenditures in the acquiring fund in the year of the purchase.
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Notes to Basic Financial Staiements Year Ended June 30 2014

H. Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

Govemnment-Wide Financial Statements (Net Position)

in addition to assets, the statement of financia! position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resouices, represents a
consumpticn of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will nof be recognized as an outflow of

resources (expensefexpenditure) untii then. The City did not have any items that qualify for reporting in this
category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate saction for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represenis an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future pariod(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) uniil that time. The City did nct have any items that quaiify for reporting in this category.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

In addition to liabiliies, the governmental funds balance sheat will sometimes report a separaie sectlon for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement slement, deferred inflows of resources,
represents assets that have been recorded in the governmental fund financial statements but the revenue is not
available and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) uniil it becomes availabie. The City
has reported unavailable revenues from property taxes as deferred inflows of resources in this category.

|, Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of its operations, transactions occur between and within individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

‘Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the
governmental activities in the statement of net position. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the statement of net position as “internal
baiances.” '

Fund Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund
statements. Receivables and payables resulting from these transactions are classified as “Due from other funds”

or “Due ta.ather funds” on the balance sheet.

J. Interfund Transfers

During the course of its operations, resources are permanently realiocated between and within funds. These
transactions are reported as transfers in and transfers out.

Government-Wide Financial Statements
Transfers between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the governmental activities in the

statement of net position. Any residual balances cutstanding between the governmental activities and business-
type activities are reporied in the statement of activities as "Transfers, net”
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2014

Fund Finanhcial Statements

Transfers between and within funds are nof eliminated from the individual fund statements and are reported as
transfers in and transfers out. '

K. Unavailable Revenue

Unavailable revenue at the governmental fund financia! statement level represents billed receivables that do not
meet the available criterion in accordance with the current financial rescurces measurement focus and the

modified accrual basis of accounting. Unavailable revenue is recognized as revenue in the conversion to the
government-wide (full accrual) financial statements.

L. Net position and Fund Equity

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net position)

Net position reported as “net investment in capital assets” includes capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, less the principal balance of cuistanding debt used to acquire capital assets. Unspent proceads of
capital related debt are not considered to be capital assets.

Net position is reported as restricted when amcunts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted
by outside parties for a specific future use.

Net'position has been "restricted for” the following:

‘Debt service” represents amounts used to reduce the amount of tax levy raised to pay principal and interest on
leng-term debt,

‘Permanent funds - expendable” represents the amount of realized and unrealized investment earnings of donor

restricted trusts. The restrictions and trustee policies only allows the trustees {0 approve spending of the realized
investment earings.

"Permanent funds - nonexpendable” represents the endowment porticn of doner restricied trusts that support
governmenial programs.

“Gifts and grants” represents restricticns placed on assets from outside parties and consists primarily of state and
federal granis.

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricied (e.q., restricted bond cor grant
proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order ic calculate the amounts to report as restricted — net position and
unrestricted — net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption
must be made about the order in which the resources are considered o be applied. It is the City's policy to
consider restricted — net position to have been depleied before unrestricted ~ net position is applied.

Fund Financial Statements (Fund Balances)

Governmental fund balances are classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned
based on the extent to which the government is bound fo henor constraints on the specific purposes for which
amounts in those funds can be spent.

The governmental fund balance classifications are as follows:
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“Nonspendable” fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable
form or they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

“Restricted” fund balance includes amounts subject to constraints placed on the use of resources that are either
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or that are
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legisiation.

“Committed” fund halance includes amounis that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the government's highest level of decision-making authority. A vote of the City
Council is the highest level of decision making authority that can commit funds for a specific purpose. Once
voted, the limitation imposed by the vote remains in piace until the funds are used for their infended purpose or a
vote is taken to rescind the commitment.

“Assigned” fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the City's intent to be used for specific
purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The City Council has by resolution authorized the City Auditor
to assign fund balance. The City Council may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund
balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year's budget. Unlike
commitments, assignmenis generally only exist temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not
normally have o be taken for the removal of an assignment.

“Unassigned” fund balance inciudes the residual classification for the general fund, This classification represents
fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned
to specific purpeses within the general fund.

The City's spending policy is to spend restricted fund balance first, followed by commiited, assigned and
unassigned fund balance. Most governmental funds are designated for one purpose at the time of their creation.
Therefore, any expenditure from the fund will be alfocated to the applicable fund balance classifications in the
order of the aforementioned spending policy. The general fund and certain other funds may have more than one
purpose,

M. Long-term debt

Government-Wide and Proprigtary Fund Financial Staterments

Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary fund statement of net position.
Material bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

The face amount of governmental funds long-term debt is reported as other financing sources. Bond premiums
and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the current period. Bond premiums are reported as
other financing sources and bond discounts are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual bond proceeds received, are reported as general government expenditures.

N. Investment Income

Excluding the permanent funds, investment income derived from major and nonmajor governmental funds is
legaily assigned to the general fund unless otherwise directed by Massachusetts General Law (MGL).

Investment income derived from the proprietary funds is retained by the proprietary funds.
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. Compensated Absences

Employees are granied vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on collective bargaining agreemenis,
state laws and executive policies.

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements
Vesied or accumuiaied vacaticn and sick leave are reported as liabiities and expensed as incurred,
Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumuiated vacation and sick leave, which will be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources, are reported as expenditures and fund liabilities.

P. Use of Estimates

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Stafements

The preparation of basic financial staiemenis in conformity with GAAP requires management io make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reporied amounts of assets and labilities and disclosure for contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the basic financial siatements and the reported amounts of the revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the year. Actual results could vary from estimates that were used.

Q. Total Column

Governmenit-Wide Financial Statements

The total column presented on the government-wide financial statements represents consclidated financial
information. '

Fund Financial Statements

The total column on thefund financial statements is presenied only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in this
column is not the equivalent of consclidated financial informaticon.

R. Appropriation and Fund Deficiis

Several individual fund deficits exist at June 30, 2014 in the special revenue and capital project funds. These
deficits will befunded by grants, bond proceeds, departmental revenues and available fund batance. Actual

expenditures and encumbrances exceeded appropriations for snow and ice removal. This over-expenditure will
be funded by the 2015 tax rate.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A cash and investment pool is maintained that is avatiakle for use by all funds. Each fund type's portion of this
pool is displayed on the balance sheet as "Cash and Cash Equivalents.” The deposits and investments of the
trust funds are heid separately from those of other funds.

Statutes authorize the invesiment in cbligations df the U.S. Treasury, agencies, and instrumentalities, certificates

of deposit, repurchase agreements, money market accounts, bank deposits and the State Treasurer's Investment
Pool {Pocl). The Treasurer may aiso invest trust funds in securities, other than mortgages or collateral loans,
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which are legal for the investment of funds of savings banks under the laws of the Commonwealth. In addition,

" there are various restrictions limiting the amount and length of deposits and invesiments.

The Pool meets the criteria of an external investment pool. The Pool is administered by the Massachusetts
Municipal Depository Trust (MMDT), which was established by the Treasurer of the Commonwealth who serves
as Trustee. The fair value of the position in the Pool is the same as the value of the Pool shares.

The System participates in the Pension Reserve Invesiment Trust (PRIT), which meets the criteria of an external
investment pool. PRIT is administered by the Pension Reserves Invesiment Management Board, which was
established by the Treasurer of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts who serves as Trustee. The fair value of
the position in the PRIT is the same as the value of the PRIT shares.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

in the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may not be
returned to it. The City’s policy allows unlimited deposits in bank accounts or CD's (up to one year maturity) that
are fully collateralized through a third party agreement. For uncollateraiized bank accounts and CD's, deposits
may not exceed Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or other deposit insurance coverags.

These deposits will be limited to no more than 5% of an institution’s assets and no more than 25% of the City's
cash. This percentage may be increased for not more than 30 days during times of heavy collection or in
anticipation of large payments that will be made by the City in the near future. CD's will be purchased for no more
than ane year and will be reviewed frequently. The City's policy also allows ynlimited investments in money
market funds, which are aliowed by statute and are considered to be Houid funds.

At year-end, the carrying amount of deposits totaled $47,924,414 and the bank balance totaled $48,320,394. Of
the bank balance, $16,431,680 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance, $644,210 was coverad by
Depositors insurance Fund, and $32,244,504 was collateralized.

At December 31, 2013, the carrying amount of deposits for the System totaled $466,210 and the bank balance
totaled $579,710. Al of the bank bafance was covered by Federal Depository insurance.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of a failure by the counterparty, the City will not be able to
recover the value of its investments or collateral security that are in the possession of an outside party. Forthe
debt securities of $2,709,263 in government spensored enterprises, $5,347,904 in corporate bonds and
$8,808,680 in equity securities, the government has custodial credit risk exposure totaling $16,865,847 because
the related securities are uninsured, unregistered and held by the.counterparty. The City does not have an
investment poticy for custodial credit risk.

For the other investments of $2.472,094 in government agencies, $1,743,043 in government sponsored
enterprises, $5,897,586 in corporate bonds and $22,170,187 in equity securities, the System has custodial credit
risk exposure totaling $32,282,910 because the related securities are uninsured, unregistered and heid by the
counterparty. The System does not have an investment policy for custodial credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk

The City's investment policy limits investment maturities to one year, except for the trust funds which are not
limited, as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest raies. The
Systern does nothave formal investment policies that limit investment maturities as a means of managing
exposure to fair value losses arising from decreasing interest rates.
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The City participates in MMDT, which maintaing a cash portfolio and a short-term bond fund with combinad
average maturities of approximately 3 meonths.

The Systern participates in PRIT. The effective weighted duration rate for PRIT investments rangad from .25 to
10,78 years. '

As of June 30, 2014, the City had the following investments and maturities:

investment Maturities (in years)

_ Less More
invesiment Type Fair Value Than 1 tfob g1tc 10 Than 10
Debt Securities
Government Sponsored .
Enterprises ........ococviiviiinenn . 3 2,709,263 % - 5 800,914 $ 780,783 $ 1,127,588
Corporate Bonds........................ 5,347 904 512 468 2,201,323 1,251,743 1,382,370
Total Debt Securities.................. 8057167 $ 512468 $ 3002237 § 2032506 $ 2509958
Other investiments
Equity Securities............covvvveniennn, 8,808,680
Equity Mutual Funds................... 1,362,057
Money Market Mutual Funds........ 976,162
MMDT 182,621
Total Investmenis............c.oo, $ 19,386,687

As of December 31, 2013, the System had the following investments and maturit%és:

Investment Maturities (in years)

Less More
investment Type Fair Value Than 1 1i05 . 610 10 Than 10
Debt Securities
- Government Agencies................. $ 2472095 § - 3 85712 % - $ 2385383
Govarnment Sponsored
Enterprises......oooooiii 1,743,043 - 830,878 104,413 807,752
Corporate Bonds.......coc e, 5,897,586 118,377 1,225,635 1,881,852 2,971,622
Bond Mutual Funds.........cooooeen 7,973,381 - - 7,973,381 -
Totat Debt Securities................... 18,088,105 $ 118377 $ 2142225 % 9650745 % 8165757
Other Investments
Equity Securities......... 22,470,187
Equity Mutual Funds....c.oceeeiens 18,560,634
Pocled Real Estate Funds......... ... 2,608,020
Pooled Alternative Investments., . .. 14,011,411
Money Market Mutual Funds... ... 2,285,096
PRIT. .. e 46,085,180
Total Investments.......oe $ 124,804,633
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Credit Risk

The City’s investment policy limits invesiments in debt securities to United States Treasuries and Agency
obligations, which carry a AA+ rating and other investments which are legat for the investment of funds of savings
banks under the faws of the Commonwealth. As of June 30, 2014, Standard & Poor's investors Service rated the
City's investments as follows:

Quality Ratings

Fair
Investment Type Vaiue AA A BBB BB
Government Sponsored
Enterprises................. $ 2709263 § 2709283 & - % - 3 -
Corporate Bonds........... 5,347,904 1,559,362 2,845,805 580,555 322,182
Total.. oo $ B057167 $ 4308825 $ 2845805 $ 580555 § 322182

The City’s investments in MMDT and PRIT were unrated.

The Sysiem has not adopted a formal policy related to Credit Risk. As of December 31, 2013, Standard & Poor's
Investors Service rated the Systam’s investments as follows:

Quality Ratings

Fair
investment Type Value AAA AA A BBB B Unrated
Government Agencies.... $ 2472095 § -« $ 2472095 § - % - $ - 8 -
Government Spansored
Enfermprse. .. 1,743,043 | - 1,743,043 - - - -
Corporate Bonds............. 5,887,588 413,983 373,476 1,237,404 955835 2,916,888
Bond Mutual Fund.......... 7,973,381 852,580 - - - 7,120,801 -

Totah .. $ 18,086,105 - 3 1,266,563 % 4,588614 § 1237404 § 955835 § 7120801 $_ 2,918,888

Concentration of Credit Risk

The City will minimize the conceniration of credit risk by diversifying the investment portfolio, so that the impact of
potential losses from any cne type of security or issuer will be minimized. No more than 5 percent of the City’s
investments are invested in any one issuer.

The System piaces no limit on the amount the System may invest in any one issuer. No more than 5 percent of
the System’s investments are invesied in any one issuer.
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NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES

At June 30, 2014, receivables for the individua
“including the applicable allowances for uncolle

Receivablas:
Rezl estate and personal property taxes
Real estate tax deferrals
Tax bens... .o o e
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes

Departmental and other.........ocicn i e

intergovernmental

I major and non-major governmental funds in the aggregate,
ctible accounts, are as follows:

At June 30, 2014, receivabies for the water and sewar enterprise funds consist of the following:

Receivables:

Y RS v eve oot ee e en e eee e,

User fees

Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
............... 3 1.745701 & (1,033,372} § 712,329
............... 344 319 - 344 319
............... 3,017 498 - 3.017,488
............... 1,305,635 (867,488) 438,147
1,888,461 {474,210) 1,414,251
............... 3,707,359 - 3,707,358
............... $ 12008873 $ (2375070) % 9,633,803
Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
$ 100,165 $ - 3 100,165
............... 8,718,400 - 8,718,400
............... 1,314,339 - 1,314,330
............... $ 10,132,904 $ - % 10,132,804

Governmental funds report unavailable revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered tc be available {o liquidate liabilities of the current period. At the end of the cumrent year, the various
components of unavailatle revenue reporied in the governmental funds were as follows:

Asset type: ]
Rea! estate and personal property taxes
Real estate tax deferrals
Taxliens.......c.ccoii
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes
Departmental and other
Intergovernmental
Tax foreclosures

City of Woburn, Massachusefts

Other
General Governmentgt
Fund Funds Total
............... $ 429322 % - % 429 322
e 344,319 - 344,319
3,017,498 - 3,017,498
............... 438,147 - 438,147
............... 18,202 1,396,049 1,414,251
............... - 3,638,181 3,538,181
............... 702,764 - 702,764
............... 3 4950262 % 4834230 % 0. 884,482
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital asseis not being depreciated:
Land.................

Construction in progress.......cov e
Total capital assets not being depreciated...........
Capital assels being depreciated:
Land Improvements. ..o e
Building improvements........ oo e
Vehicles...............

Machinery and equipment... ...
INFrastraCiUrg. ..o e

Total capital assets being depreciated.................
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvementS... ..o i e
Building improvemeniS... co.coo e i e e
Vehicles. ..o
Machinery and equipment............... L
Infrastructure...

Total accurnulated depreciaion........................

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Total governmental activities capital assets, net.............

City of Wobumn, Massaéhusetts

.3

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
22,088,936 & - §. - § 22,068,936
646,317 - (648,317) -
22 715253 - {646,317} 22,068,938
5,038,521 - - 5,038,521
17,214,507 - - 17,214,507
147,923,702 - - 147,923,702
3,062 521 486,504 - 3,639,025
8,030,836 897,071 - 8,027,957
52,151,841 2,579,294 “ R4 731,235
233,412,078 4,062 869 - 237 474,847
{1,883,758) (142,953) - (2,026,711)
(9,357,911) (765,508) - (10,123,419)
{21,181,498) {794,532) - (21,976,030)
(2,094,407} (334.289) - (2,428,686)
(5,282,633) {488,072) - (5,780,705)
(34,068, 575) (1,341,950) - {35,408,525)
(73,876,782) {3,867 ,304) - {77 744,085)
159 535,296 195,565 - 158,730,881
182,250,649 % 195,565 § (646,317 § 181,789,797
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Water and Sewer Activities:
Capital agsets not being depreciated:
= {3 1o S PO 3 332,240 3% - 3 -3 332,249
Construction in Progress....oov e cee e e 83 000 - - 83,000
Total capital asseis not being depreciated............ 415,240 - - 415,240
Capifal gssets being depreciated: '
BUBIMGS .o s e e e s 6,853,303 - - £,953,303
VehiCles. . 122,000 - - 122,000
Machinery and equipment... ..o 559,465 . - 559 485
Ifrastruciure. ... e 68,087,119 4 570,625 - 72,657 744
Total capital assets baing depreciated... ............ 75,721,887 4.570,625 - 80,292,512
Less accumulated depreciation for:
BUildings. ... oo e e {2,648,401) (155,879) - {2,804,380)
Vehicles. o (122,000) - . - (122,000}
Machinery and equipment. ... e {474,357} {12,498} - {486,855)
Infrastructure. ... (22 457 B6EY {1,403,119) - (23,860,284)
Total accumulated depreciation.......................... (25,702 B23) (1,571,5986) - {27,274,2?9\)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net................... 50,015,264 2,999,029 . - 53,018,293
Total water and sewer activities capital assets, net... ... F 50434504 § 2093029 % - & 53433533

Depreciation expense was charged fo functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General gQoVEIMIMEBNE. .. ..ot e e e e e $ 77.977
Publicsafety. ..o 623,570
EdUGatON . e e 1,369,658
PUBlic WorkS....oo o 1,664,941
HUMEAN SBIVICES. o vir e e e e e e 11,471
Culture and recreation. ... 118,688

Tatal depreciation expense - governmental activities.................... $ 3,867,304

Business-Type Activities:
BT BN BB WE . et e e e $ 1,671,596
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NOTE 5 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Due foffrom other funds

As of June 30, 2014, the City has an interfund receivabie/payabie of $48,517 which exists between the general

fund and the state highway granis fund. The purpose of this balance is to cover short-term cash needs that will be
funded by future grant proceeds.

Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2014, are summarized as foliows:

Transfers In:

Nonmajor
General Governmental
Transfers Out: Fund Funds Total
General Fund... ... $ - $ 2480308 § 2,480,308 (1)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds........ 4,073,002 - 4.073,002 (2)
Goodyear School Fund................... 893,848 - 893,848 (3)
Water and Sawer Enterprise Fund... .. 1,541,688 - 1,541,686 (4)
Total.o e 8 5,508,536 $ 2,480,308 § 8,988844

{1} Represents budgeted transfers from the general fund to the debt service fund and the Whispering Hill capital
nroject fund,

(2) Represents budgeted transfers to the general fund from other available funds and the debt service fund.

(3) Represents the transfer of excess stabilization funds appropriated for the Goodyear School capitat project
fund back to the stabilization fund.

{4} Represents the transfer of indirect costs from the water and sewer enterprise fund to the general fund.
NOTE 6 - SHORT-TERM FINANCING
Short-term debt may be authorized and issued to fund the following:

s Current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through issuance of revenue or tax anticipation
notes (RANS or TANS).

+ Capiial project costs and other approved expenditures incurred prior to obtaining permanent financing
through issuance of bond anticipation notes (BANS) or grant anticipation notes (GANS).

Short-term loans are general obligations and carry maturity dates that are limited by statute. Interest
expenditures and expenses for shori-term borrowings are accounted for in the general fund and enterprise fund,
respectively,

The City did not issue short-term debt during 2014 and did not have any ameunts outstanding as of June 30,
2014,
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Under the provisions of Chapter 44, Section 10, Municipal Law authorizes indebtedness up to a limit of 5% of the
equalized valuation. Debt issued in accordance with this section of the law is desighated as being “inside the
debt iimit." In addition, however, debt may be autherized in excess of that limit for specific purposes. Such debt,
when issued, is designated as being "outside the debt limit.”

Details related to the outstanding indebtedness at June 30, 2014, and the debt service requirements are as
follows:

Bonds and Notes Payable Schedule ~ Governmental Funds

Qriginal interest
Maturities Lean Rate Beginning £nding
Project Through Amount {%) Balance ssued Redesmed Balance
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2004 2026 5 10,003,033 344 8 1,154,255 § -§ (514,435 % 639,820
Municipat Purpose Bonds of 2005 ...t 2006 22,500,000 4.46 4,500,000 - (1,500,000} 3,000,000
Municipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 2005......... 2015 1,150,000 418 585,000 - (285,000) 280,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2007, ...l 2027 2,370,000 2.00 2,050,000 - {160,000) 1,880,000
MOWT CW-0B-08.......c i i e 2018 300,060 2.00 157,728 - {30,296} 127 432
MCOWT CW-06-12. i 2018 225,000 2.00 118,286 - (22,722) 95,674
MOWT CW-07-15. e 2029 250,000 2.00 206,845 - (11,085) 185,860
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2012, veeeo e, 2037 70,154,000 316 18,055,000 - (585,000) 18,470,000
Municipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 2012......... 2025 4,830,000 3.26 4,760,300 - (20,000) 4,740,000
Municipal Purpose Bands of 2013, 2023 1,826,000 364 1,826,000 - (181,000) 1,635,000
punicipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 2013......... 2026 12,610,000 378 12,810,000 - ~ 12,610,000
= DN % 47,603,224 § - 8 {3,318,538) 8 43,683,686
Debt service reguirements for principal and interest for governmentai bonds payabie in future years are as
follows: '
Year Principal Inferest Totai

2015 .. 3 3320210 § 0 1,339,408 § 4,653,625

2016, 3,281,721 1,280,409 4,572,220

2017 e 2,843,068 1,223,580 4,166,658

2018 2,919,443 1,130,845 4,050,388 —_

2019 2,807,251 1,037,958 3,845,209

2020 2,827,499 944,361 3,771,880

2027 3,017,751 845 833 3,883,584

2022 2,888,009 739,350 3,737,359

2023 2,873,271 627,863 3,601,134

2024, .. i 2,783,540 514,020 3,287 560

2025 . 0 2,548,813 415,198 2,984,008

2026, 2,239,002 342,698 2,581,790

2027 968,377 295,343 1,264,720

2028, 829,667 267 424 1,097,081

2028, 829,964 242 063 1,072,027

2030 810,000 216,268 1,028,268

2031 800,000 180,108 990,108

2032 800,000 163,458 963,458

2033, 800,000 135,200 935,209

2034, 800,000 105,708 805,708

2035 755,000 75,800 870,800

2038, e 795,000 45 480 840,480

2037 795,000 15,145 810,145

Total.................. $ 43683686 $ 12203727 $ 55887413
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Bonds and Notes Payable Schedule - Enterprise Funds

Original Interest

Maturities Loan Rate HBeginning Ending

Project Through Amaount {%) Balance lssued Redeemed Balance
MEOWT G007 ot eee e e v e e 2021 5,046,069 448 $ 2,490,000 $ - § (275,000} $ 2,215,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2004, 2025 8,878,262 3.85 770,000 - {380,000% 380,000
MWRA Notes of 2007 ..o e 2017 1,100,000 0.00 440,000 - {110,000} 330,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2008, 2018 220,000 4.83 120,600 " {20,000} 100,000
MWRA Notes of 2008.......ccccveeviiiiie ennnes 2018 1,200,000 0.00 60,000 B {120,000) 480,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2008000 vevvienne 2030 8,500,000 418 5,815,000 {245,000} 5,870,000
Municipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 2008........ 2020 800,000 3.63 615,000 {80,000) 525,000
MWRANotes of 2010, ..o i 2015 1,154,330 0.00 808,031 - (115,433) 682,558
MCWT DWS 08-19.......... 2031 5,241,464 2.00 5,723,561 - {266,824) 5,456,737
MCWT DWS 07-17.......... 2031 3,317,612 2.00 3,317,812 - (156,035) 3,162,577
MWRA Notes of 2012... 2022 1,000,000 0.00 800,000 - (100,000) 800,000
MOWT DWS 08 18-A o e 2033 2,035,158 2.00 2,335,158 " {82,324) 1,852,834
Municipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 2012......... 2025 2,985,000 338 2,925,000 - {10,000) 2,815,000
Muricipal Purpose Bonds of 2013, 2033 4,300,000 3.32 4,300,000 - {215,000) 4,085,000
MOWT DWS-07-17-A i e e e 2031 519,179 2.00 619,179 - (28,478) 590703
Sub-total water... ... .. 31,478,541 (2,223,082) 28,255,448
Mupicipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 2009... ... 2020 505,000 3.83 345,000 - {50,000) 285,000
MWRA Notes of 2010 2015 949,025 .00 378,810 - {189,805) 188,805
MWRA Notes of 2013 2018 478,050 0.00 478,050 - {85.810) 383,240
SUB-OLRT SEWEE L oo e 1,203,660 - {335,818) BG8,045
Total entarprise PNdS. ..o $ 32,682,204 5 - §  {2,558,707) % 30123484

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for water and sewer enterprise fund bonds and notes payable

in future years are as follows:

Year Principat Interest Total
2005 2,589,597 $ 838,416 3 3,428,013
2018 2,340,903 776,389 3,117,292
2017 i 2,367,242 716,191 3,083,433
2018 2,273,813 648,982 2,922,805
2019 2,069,811 577,656 2,847 467
2020.. 2,096,860 507,650 2,604,410
2021 1,883,722 453,554 2,337,276
2022, e 1,568,269 402,136 1,968,405
2023, 1,484 072 355791 1,839,863
2024.. 1,507,138 307,812 1,814,950
2025.. 1,535,471 259,608 1,795,376
2028.. 1,284,077 218,688 1,612,765
2027 1,312,862 181,872 1,404 634
2028.. 1,352,131 142,984 1,495,085
2028.. 1,388,589 102,984 1,489,673
2030 1,421,343 61,544 1,482,887
2031.. 968 401 29,6563 988,054
2032.. 336,229 13,930 350,159
2033 333,864 4879 343,643
Total. oo § 30,123,494 § 6600508 § 38,724,003

in prior years, the City defeased certain of its outstanding general obligation bonds by placing the proceeds of
new refunding bonds in an iremovable escrow account to provide amounts sufficient for the future payment of
principal and interest on these bends. Accordingly, neither the assets in escrow nor the liabifity for the defeased
bonds are inciuded in the City's financial statements. As of June 30, 2014, $22 645,000 of general obligation

bonds outstanding are considered defeased.
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The Massachusetts Water Rescurces Authority (MWRA) operates an Infiltration/Inflow Local Assistance Program
for community owned collection systems. For each community approved for the project, financial assistance
received from the MWRA consists of a grant and non-interest bearing loan. At June 30, 2014, the outstanding
principal amount of these loans totaled $573,045.

The governmental funds are scheduied to be subsidized by the Massachusetts Clean Water Trust (MCWT) on a
pericdic basis for principal in the armount of $1,223 and interest costs for $22,802. Thus, net MCWT loan
repayments, including interest, are scheduled to be $158,955. Since the City is legally obligated for the total
amount of the debt, such amounts have been recorded in the accompanying basic financial statements. The
2014 interest subsidy totaled $3,061.

The water and sewer enterprise fund is scheduled to be subsidized by the MCWT on a periodic basis for principal
in the amount of $685,160 and interest costs for $297,978, Thus, net MCWT loan repayments, including interest,
are scheduled o be $1,750,324. The principal subsidies are guaranteed and therefore a $885,160
intergovernmental receivable has been reporied in the propriefary fund financial statements. Since the City is
legally obligated for the total amount of the debt, such amounts have been recorded in the accompanying basic
financial statements. The 2014 principal and interest subsidies totaled $77,470 and $84,990, respectively.

The City is subject to various debt iimits by statute and may issue additional general obligation debt under the
normal debt limit. At June 30, 2014, the City had the following authorized and unissued debt:

Purpose Amount

HurldAMWyman elementary school feasibility study.......... $ 875,000
Sewer inflow and infitration reduction................o. L. 6,800,000
Surface drainage.. oo 8,800,000
Leland park improvements... ... 1,300,000
Water infrastructure improvements............................ 3,428 961
el MBS o e 8,000,000

TOtEL oo e S $ 25203951

Changes in L.ong-term Liabifities

During the year ended June 30, 2014, the following changes occurred in fong-term liabilities:

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
Governmental Activities:
Compensated absences.............. $ 5,697,000 $ 1,882,000 § (1,955,000) § 6,624,000 § 1,947,000
QOther postemployment benefits... .. 36,933,140 12,598,020 (8,089,718} 41,461,442 -
Bonds payable......oooo oo 47,003,224 - (3,319,538) 43,683,686 3,320,219
Total....ooooie .. 300,633,364 3 14,480,020 $ (13,344.266) § 91,769,128 3§ 5267218
Business-type Activities:
Unamortized bond premiums........ § 23080 & - 3 (5,172} § 18778 $ 4 530
Compensated abisences............. 232,000 64,000 (58,000) 238,000 50,000
Ciher postemployment benefits... . 220,466 145,645 {174,852) 191,258 -
Bonds payable... ...l 32,682 201 - (2,558,707} 30,123 494 2 588 587

TOL. oo iovee oo e § 33,158,617 $ 209,645 § (2796,731) $ 30,571,631 $ 2,654,187
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Year Ended June 30, 2014

NOTE 8 - GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS

GASB #54 provides for two major types of fund balances, which are nonspendable and spendable.
Nonspendable fund balances are balances that cannot be spent because they are not expected to be converted
to cash or they are legally or contractually required to remain intact. Examples of this classification are prepaid
items, inventories, and principal (corpus) of an endowment fund. The City has reported principat portions of

endowment funds as nonspendable.

In addition fo the nonspendable fund balance, GASB #54 has provided a hierarchy of spendable fund balances,

based on a hierarchy of spending constraints.

s Restricted: fund balances that are constrained by external parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling

legisiation.

« Committed: fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the government from its highest level
of decision making authority. The City's highest level of decision making authority is City Council.

« Assigned: fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the government to be used for a

pariicular purpose.

s Unassigned: fund balance of the general fund that is not constrained for any particutar purp;ase.

As of June 30, 2014, the governmental fund balances consisted of the foilowing:

Fund Balances

Nonspendable:
Permanent fund pringipal.........cociiniiennn

Restricted for:
Municipal federal and state grants..............
Education federal and state grants..............
Receipts reserved for appropriation funds ..
Municipal revolving funds ...
Schooltunch .o
Infrastrucivre fund.............o s
Other special FevenUa.......oooivvvven ceeeeeenes
Debt service funds....ooi e e,
Liprany trast funds...... oo
Cemetery perpetual care funds..................

Committed to:
Affordable housing siabilization fund
PUbHG 8afetY..... e
PUBlic WOTKS... oo v .
HUMEN S&TVICES ..o
Culture and recreation........cooeereie e v
Capitai DUHEY....oovee e

Assigned fo:
General government.......o i
Public safety.....oooi
Education.........coooiiininn s
PUblic Works.....oov e
HUuman services....o..oeiiivineneans
Cuiture and recreation.................
Employee benefits............ol.

Unassigned........ S U PIPUPRUIN

Totat Fund Balances. .. .....oovveiiivviiveveinir nrinenins

City of Woburn, Massachusetts

Governmental Funds

Nonmajor Totat
Governmental Governmental

General Funds Funds
- % 2,703,225 § 2,703,225
- 324,211 320,214
- 208,235 296,235
- 1,520,167 1,520,167
- 580,545 580,545
- 414 572 414,572
- 763,241 763,241
- 885,638 885,639
- £23,563 623,563
- 7.460,183 7,460,183
- 349,465 349,485
2,662 106 2,962,106
61,167 - 61,167
236,91 - 236,911
23,207 - 23,207
9,889 - 9,888
2,758,187 - 2,759,187
258,935 - 258,935
93,389 - 83,38%
513,688 - 513,608
44 715 44,715
4,095 - 4,095
15,809 - 15,809
964,679 - 964,679
26,770,464 - 26,770,464

$ 34718,151 % 15,917,046 §

45

50,635,197
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Notes to Basic Financial Statemenis Year Ended June 30, 2014

Massachusetts General Law Ch.40 §58 allows for the astablishment of Stabilization funds for ane or more
different purposes. The creation of a fund requires a two-thirds vote of the legislative body and must clearly
define the purpose of the fund, Any change to the purpose of the fund along with any additions to or
appropriations from the fund requires a two-thirds vote of the legislative body.

At year end, the general stabilization fund totated $11,803,531 and is reported as unassigned fund balance within
the general fund; and the affordable housing stabilization fund totaled $2,962,106 and is reported as committed
fund balance within the generai fund.

NOTE 9 - RISK FINANCING

The City is exposed fo various risks of loss refated to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets: errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial insurance. The City administers

various premium-based health care plans, workers compensation and other insurance for its empioyees and
retirees. '

NOTE 16 - PENSION PLAN

Flan Description - The City coniributes to the System, a cost-sharing multiple-empioyer defined benefit pension
plan administered by the Woburn Contributory Retirement Board. Substantially all employees are members of the
System, except for public school teachers and certain administrators who are members of the Massachusetis
Teachers Retirement System, to which the City does not contribute. Pension benefits and administrative
expenses paid by the Teachers Retirement Board are the legal responsibility of the Commonwealth. The amount
of these on-behalf payments totaled $13,129,387 for the year ended June 30, 2014, and, actordingly, are
reported in the general fund as intergovernmental revenues and pension expenditures.

The System provides retirement, disabiiity and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter 32 of
the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. Cost-of-living adjustments
granted between 1881 and 1897 and any increase in other benefits imposed by the Commonwealth’s state law
during those years are borne by the Commonwesaith and are deposited into the pension fund. Cost-of-living
adjustments granted after 1957 must be approved by the Board and are borne by the System.

The System issues a publicly available unaudited financial report in accordance with guidelines established by the
Commonwealth’'s PERAC. That report may be obtained by contacting the System located at 10 Common Street,
Woburn, Massachusetts, 01801.

At December 31, 2013, the System’s membership consists of the following:

ACHVE MEBIMDBIS. .. et et e e et e et e, 591
Inactive Mem b erS. 78
Disabled MemMbDErS. e e 31
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving beneafits. ... 386
TOta e e, 1,084
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30,2014

Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute to the System at rates ranging from 5% to 11% of
annual covered compensation, The City is required to pay into the System its share of the system-wide actuarial
determined confribution that is apporticned among the employers based on active current payroll. The current
and two preceding year's apportionment of the annual pension cost between the two employers required the City

to contribute approximately 96% of the fotal. Chapter 32 of the MGL governs the contributions of plan members
and the City.

Annual Pension Cost - The City's contributions to the System for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012
were 35,136,582, $4,884,138, and $4,712,121, respectively, which equaled its required cantribution for each year.
At June 30, 2014, the City did not have a net pension obligation. The required contribution was determined as
part of the January 1, 2012, actuarial valuation using the individuai entry age normal actuarial cost method. The
actuarial assumptions included an 8.25% investment rate of return and projected salary increases of 3.0% per
year increasing to 4.0% over a 5 year pericd. The actuaria! value of the System's assets was determined using a
5 year smoothing method. The System's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level
percentage of projected payroll. The remaining amortization period at January 1, 2012, was 24 years.

Schedute of Funding Progress
{Dollar amounts in thousands)

Actuarial UAAL asa

Actuarial Accrued - Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Valuye of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assels Entry Age {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date {A) (B) (B-A) {AB) <) {B-A)C)

o102 % 106,182 % 162,639 3 58,457 65.3% $ 27,681 204.0%

01/01/10 - 104,707 154,300 49 593 67.9% 27,433 180.8%

01/01/08 110,478 141,758 31,280 77.9% 24,432 128.0%

01/01/07 102,354 132,433 30,079 77.3% 24,258 124.0%

01/01/05 87.819 120,595 32,776 72.8% 22,624 144 .9%

01/01/00 75,960 88,763 12,803 85.6% 17,183 74.5%

Funding progress is reported based on the biennial actuarial valuation performed by the System, and is being
accumuiated on a biennial basis. The City is responsibie for approximately 96% of the unfunded liability.

NOTE 11 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

Plan Description — The City of Woburn administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare pian (Retiree
Heaith Plan). The plan provides lifetime healthcare insurance for eligible retirees and their spouses through the
City’s group health insurance plan, which covers both active and retired members. Chapter 32B of the MGL
assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. Benefit provisions are negotiated
between the City and the unions representing City empioyees and are renegotiated each bargaining period. The
Retiree Hesith Plan does not issue a publicly available financial report.

Funding Policy — Contribution requirements are also negotiated between the City and union representatives. The
required contribution is based on a pay-as-you-go financing requirement. Depending on the plan selected, the
City contributes various percentages of the cost of current-year premiums for efigible retired plan members and
their spouses. Plan members receiving benefits contribute the remaining portion of their premium costs.
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Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation — The City's annual other postempioyment benefit (OPEB) cost
(expense) is caiculated based on the annual required confribution of the empicyer (ARC), an amount actuariaily
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities {or funding excess) over a pericd not to exceed thirty years.

The components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and
changes in the Ciiy's net OPEB obligation are summarized in the following table:

Annual required contribution.. e 50 12,338,023
interest on net OPEB obiigatlon e e 1,857,680
Adiustment to annual required con‘{r butlon ...................... (1,452,938}
Annual OPEB cost (expensel............coco i 12,743,665
Contributions Mage. ..o e (8,244 6570}
increase in net OPEB obligation... ..., 4,499,095
Net OPEB obligation-beginning of year.............oo 37,153,806
Net OPEB obligation-end of YEar.............c.coveevvveeee e, $ 41,652,701

The City's annuai OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for 2014 was as follows:

Percentage of

Year Annual Annual OPER Net OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost  Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/2014 § 12,743,865 655% $ 41,652,701
6/30/2013 17,034,163 43% 37,153,608
8/30/2012 16,179,374 41% 27,447,422

Funded Status and Funding Progress — As of June 30, 2013, the most recent acituarial valuation date, the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $161,311,012 all of which was unfunded.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future, Examples include assumptions about fuiure
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost frend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress, prasented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing
over time relative fo the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — Projections of benefits for financial reporting purpeses are based on the
substantive plan {the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the
employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assefs, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. ‘
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GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounis
Amounts Current Year
Carried forward Initial Original Final
From Prior Year Budget Budget Budget
REVENUES:
Real estate and personal property taxes,
netoftaxrefunds......ooo e $ -8 86,226,980 $ 89,226,980 § 89,836,980
X IS et - - - -
Motor vehicle excise {aXes.......coivve el - 4,827,000 4,827,060 4,827,000
Hotelfmotel tax .. ..., oo - 2,100,000 2,100,000 2,10G,000
MEEIS 18X e - 786,600 780,000 78G,000
Penalties and interest onfaxes. ... - 880,000 880,000 840,000
Intergovernmental... ... - 13,108,014 13,108,014 13,373,014
Departmental and other - 1,393,000 1,393,000 1,168,000
Investment INCOME.. ..ot e e - 300,000 300,000 300,000
TOTAL REVENUES ... v ravenes - 112,814,994 112,614,994 113,224,254
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General QOVEInment.........cooi e ae e 308,267 3,483,126 3,771,393 4,190,002
Public safety.....o e 94,605 15,539,834 15,634,439 16,707,438
EQUCAtON.. o e 314, 547 52,359,716 52,674,263 53,004,264
PUbBC WORKS. .. 666,954 7,890,545 8,656,499 8,621,060
Human services 34,819 1,098,231 1,133,050 1,444 461
Culture and recreation 50,885 1,886,315 1,837,180 4,933,180
Pension benefilS... .o, - 5,210,291 5,210,291 5,210,281
Employee henefits......coiviiiiiiicie s 1,217,890 18,013,160 19,231,050 20,587,957
Siate and county charges.. ..o iiecre e e - 3,280,365 3,280,385 3,280,365
Capital ouday....coccee e, 2,448,381 - 2,445,391 5088416
Debt service;
PrnciDal. oo “ 1,601,000 1,601,000 3,248,000
Iderest. . e, - 916,252 916,252 1,724,726
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ....oiiivive e, 5,138,338 111,258,835 116,395,173 125,039,180
EXCESS (BEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES. c.oovv e (5,136,338) 1,358,159 (3,780,179) {11,814,196)
GTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TranSTers M e i - 1,468,149 1,468,149 5,541,151
Transfers ot ..., - (2,070,308) (2,070,308) {5,480,308)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOQURCES (UBES).......c, : - (602,158) {602,159) 50,843
NET CHANGE INFUND BALANCE.........., (5,136,338} - 754 000 (4,382,338) {11,753,353)
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, Beginning of year....... - 25,545,111 25,545,111 25,545,111
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, End ofyear............... $ {5,138,338) & 26299111 § 21,162,773 % 13,781,758
See noles 10 required supplementary information.
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Actual Amounis Variance
Budgetary Carried Forward o Final
Ameunts To Next Year Budget

$ 90,237,345 § - 8 400,365
809,784 - 809,784
6,088,101 - 1,261,101
2.688,033 - 588,033
888,076 - 108,076
514,469 - (325.531)
13,892,233 - 519,219
1,882,134 - 714,134
395105 - 95,105
117,395,280 - 4,170,288
3,747,945 258,935 183,122
16,401,474 154,556 151,408
52,475,926 513,598 14,740
8,738,863 281,826 .(389,429)
1,352,549 27,302 64,640
1,887,901 25,698 19,581
5,151,411 - 58,880
19,148,374 964,679 473,904
3,280,365 - -
2,026,617 2,788,187 303,612
3,248,000 - -
1,631,394 - 93,332
119,086,819 4,985,581 963,790

(1,694,539} {4,985,581) 5,134,076

5 541151 " -

(5,480 308) “ -

60,843 - -
(1,633,696} (4,985,581) 5,134,078
25,845,111 - -

% 23911415 % (4985581 $ 5,134,078
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Retirement Systém Schedules of Funding
Progress and Employer Contributions

The Retirement System Schedule of Funding Progress presents muttiyear trend information refating to the cost-

sharing pian as a whole, of which the City is one participating employer, about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

The Retirement System Schedule of Employer Contributions presents multiyear trend information for required and
actual contributions relating to the cost-sharing plan as a whole, of which the City is one participating employer,
as well as the City’s proportionate share of the plan’s annual contributions.
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WOBURN CONTRIBUTORY RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL)  AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (A) (B) {B-A) (A/B) {C) ({B-A)C)
01/01/12 $ 106,182 $ 162,639 § 56,457 85.3% $ 27,681 204.0%
01/01/10 104,707 154,300 49,583 87.9% 27,433 180.8%
01/01/08 140,478 141,758 31,280 77.9% 24,432 128.0%
01/01/07 102,354 132,433 30,079 77.3% 24,258 124.0%
01/01/05 87,819 120,595 32,778 72.8% 22,624 144.9%
01/01/00 75,960 88,763 12,803 85.6% 17,183 74.5%

See notes to required supplementary information.

City of Woburn, Massachusetis 55

Regquired Suppiementary Information




WOBURN CONTRIBUTORY RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

{Dollar amounts in thousands)

System Wide City of Woburn
{BIA)

Year Annual (A} (B} City's Percentage
Ended Required Actual Percentage Actus of System Wide
Juna 30 Contributions Contributions Contributed Contributions Actual Contributions

2014 b 533¢ § 5338 100% $ 5,137 98.22%

2013 5088 5,089 100% 4,884 95.87%

2012 4,914 4914 100% 4,712 95.88%

2611 4,683 4,663 100% 4,485 95.75%

2010 4,524 4,524 100% 4,334 95.80%

2009 4,369 4,369 100% 4,200 96.13%

The City's Actual Contributions equaled 100% of its Required Contributions for each year presented.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Other Postemployment
Benefit Plan Schedules

The Schedule of Funding Progress compares, over time, the aciuarial accrued liability for benefits with the

actuarial value of accumuiated plan assets. The Schedule of Employer Contributions compares, over time, the
annual required contribution with the actual contributions made.

The Schedule of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions prasents factors that significantly affect the identification of
trends in the amounts reported.

City of Woburn, Massachusetts 57 Required Supplementary Information




OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS AND EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Scheduie of Funding Progress

Actuarial UAAlL as a
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Perceniage
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Projected Unit Credit {(UAAL) Ratio Payroil Payroll
Date {A) (B) (B-A) (A/B) (C) ((B-A)C)
6/30/2013 $ - $ 161,311,012 § 161,311,012 0% $  N/A N/A
6/30/2011 - 243,982,491 243,982,481 0% N/A N/A
8/30/2008 - 208,491,596 208,491,586 0% N/A NiA
8/30/2007 - 198,799,831 198,799,831 0% N/A N/A

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Annuai Actual

Year Required Contributions Percentage

Ended Contribution Made Contributed
6/30/2014 12,328,923 § 8,244 570 67%
8/30/2013 16,800,797 7,327,879 44%
6/30/2012 16,026,805 5,664,564 42%
6/30/2011 13,857,572 7,059,608 51%
6/3G/2010 13,220,391 6,231,320 47%
6/30/2009 12,5645 242 8,600,158 £89%

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 45 for the year ended June 30, 2009, -
Information for prior years is not available.
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN
SCHEDULE OF ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS

Actuarial Methods:

Valuationdate...........o Jure 30, 2013
Actuarial cost method.............. oLl Projected Unit Credit
Amertization method........... 30 vear open amortization method
with payments increasing at 4.0% per year
Remaining amortization period............oin 30 years as of June 34, 2013

Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment rate of refurn... ... e 5.0%, pay-as-yol-go
Medical costtrend rate............oocoo 7.5% graded o0 5.0% over 5 years
Inflation assUMption... ..o, 4.0%

Plan Membership:

Current retirees, heneficiaries, and dependents.... 1,013
Current active members.........coo oo 342
e ] 2= | DU 1,855

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Notes to Required Supplementary information Year Ended June 30, 2014

NOTE A - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

1. Budgetary Information

Municipal Law requires the adoption of a balanced budget that is approved by the Council. The Mayor presents
an annual budget to the Council, which includes estimates of revenues and other financing sources and
recommendations of expenditures and other financing uses. The Council, which has full authority to amend
and/or reject the budget or any line item, adopts the expenditure budget by majority vote.

Increases or transfers between and within departments subsequent to the approval of the annual budgst, requires
majority Council approval via & supplermental appropriation or Council order.

The majority of appropriations are non-continuing which lapse at the end of each year, Others are continuing
appropriations for which the governing bedy has authorized that an unspent balance from a prior year be carried
forward and made available for spending in the current year. These carry forwards are included as part of the
subsequent year's original budget.

Generally, expenditures may not exceed the legal level of spending {salaries, expenses and capital) authorized
for an appropriation account. However, the payment of debt service is statutorily required, regardiess of whether
such amounts are appropriated. Additionally, expenditures for disasters, natural or ctherwise, and final judgments
may exceed the level of spending authorized by majority vote of the Councit.

An annual budget is adopied for the general fund in conformity with the guidelines described above. The original
2014 approved budget authorized approximately $118.5 million in appropriations, carryforwards, and other
amounts to be raised. During 2014, the Counci] aiso approved supplemental appropriations fotaling
approximately $12.1 million. The change is primarily due to increases in appropriations for public safety,
empioyee benefils, capital outlay, debt service and transfers to other funds.

The City Auditor has the responsibility to ensure that budgstary control is maintained. Budgetary conirol is
exercised through the City's accounting system.

2. Budgsetary - GAAP Reconciliation

For budgetary financial reporting purposes, the Uniform Municipal Accounting System basis of accounting
(established by the Commonwealth) is foliowed, which differs from the GAAP basis of accounting. A
reconciliation of budgetary-basis fo GAAP-basis results for the general fund for the year ended June 30, 2014, is
presented below:

Net change in fund balance - budgetary basis.........cceei .. 8 (1,833,696}

Ferspective difference;
Activity of the stabilization fund recorded in the

general fund for GAAP . 4,158,460
Basis of accounting differences:.
Net change in recording 60-day receipts...... oo, {133,000}
Net change in recording tax refunds payable... ... v (1,355,000}
Net change in recording accrued payroll... ... i e {258,331}
Increase in revenues due to on-behalf payments... ... 13,129,387
Increase in expenditures due to on-behalf payments......... ... ... (13,129,387)
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis......c.ocociiici e B 781,433
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information Year Ended June 3.0 2014

3. Appropriation Deficits

During 2014, actua! expenditures exceeded appropriations for snow and ice removal. This over expenditure
will be funded by the subsequent years tax levy.

NOTE B - PENSION PLAN

The City contributes to the System, a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan ("Plan™
administered by the Woburn Contributory Retirement Board. The System provides retirement, disability, and
death benefits to members and beneficiaries. Chapter 32 of the MGL assigns authosity to establish and
amend benefit provisions of the Plan. The City is required to pay into the Retirement System.its share of the
system-wide actuarially determined contribution which is apportioned among the employers based on aciive
covered payroil.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information presents multi-year frend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Additionally, the schedule of employer contributions, presented as
required supplementary information presents multi-year frend information for required and actual contributions
relating to the cost-sharing pian as a whole, of which the City is one participating employer, as well as the City's
proportionate share of the plan's annual contributions. This information is designed to be helpfut for
understanding the scale of the information presented refative to the City.

The following actuarial methods and assumptions were used in the Retirement System’s most recent
actuarial valuation:

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

WValuation Date. ..o e e January 1, 2012

Actuarial Cost Method. ... Individual Entry Age Normai Cost Method
Amartization Method. ... Increasing at 4.0% per year
Remaining Amortization Perfod..........occoooii 24 years remaining as of January 1, 2012, closed
Asset Valuation Method.......ooooiiivi i Market value with a 5 year smoothing
Actuarial Assumptions
Investment rate of return........ooo e 8.25% _
Projected salary INCréases. ..., 3.0% increasing to 4.0% over 5 years :
Cost of living adiustments...... ... 3.00% of the lesser of the pension amount and $12,600
per year

NOTE C — OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The City administers a single-empioyer defined benefit healthcare pian (“the Retires Health Plan™). The plan
provides lifetime healthcare and prescription drug benefits for eligible retirees and their spouses through the City’s
health insurance plan, which covers both active and retired members, including teachers.

The City currently finances its other postemployment benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. As a result, the funded
ratio (actuarial value of assets expressed as a percentage of the actuariai accrued iability) is 0%. In accordance
with Governmental Accounting Standards, the City has recorded its OPEB cost equal to the actuarial determined
annual required contribution {ARC) which includes the normal cost of providing benefits for the year and a
component for the amortization of the totai unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the plan.
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information Year Ended June 30, 2014

The Schedule of Funding Progress presents muiti-year trend information which compares, over time, the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits with the actuarial value of accumulated plan assets. The Scheduie of Empioyer
Contributions compares, over time, the annual required contribution with the actual contributions made.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive pian and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historicai pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the

“employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The Schedule of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions presents factors that significantly affect the identification of
frends in the amounts reported.
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Powers & Sullivan, LLC

Certified Public Accountants

100 Quannapowitt Parkway
Suite 101
Wakefield, MA 01886
T 781-914-1700
To the Honorable Mayor F.781-914-1701
Clty of WObUI’ﬂ, Massachusetts www. powersandsnilivan.com

In planning and performing our audit of the financiat statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts
(City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014 (except for the Woburn Cantributory Retirement System which
is as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013), in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, we considered the City's internal controt over financial reporting (internal control} as
a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of exprassing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

However, during our audit we became aware of several matters that are opportunities for strengthening internal
controls and operating efficiency. The memorandum that accompanies this lefter summarizes our comments and
suggestions regarding those matters.

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed
these comments and suggestions with various City personnel, and will be pieased io discuss them in further detail
at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist you in implementing the
recommendations.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management of the City of Woburn,
Massachusetts, and is nof intended to be and should not he used by anyone other than these specified parties.

%w f,df,g//m LLC.

March 18, 2018
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PRIOR YEAR COMMENTS



INVESTMENT POLICY

Prior Year Comment

in the prior year, we indicated that the Treasurer drafted an investment policy to be presented to the governing
bady for review and approval. We recommended that the Treasurer implement the investment policy upon review
and approval.

Current Status

The City Council adopted the cash and investment policy on May 8, 2014.

TIMELINESS OF YEAR-END AUDIT DOCUMENTATION

Prior Year Comment

In the prior year, we indicated that to comply with generally accepted accounting principles, among other financial
information, the City's financial statements must include fixed assets and year-end accruals for appellate tax
board (ATB) and compensated absence liabiiities, as required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement #34 and Statement #18, respectively.

Current Status

The audit documentation identified above was provided on a fimelier basis for the 2014 audit.

FRAUD RISK ASSESSMENT

Prior Year Comment

In the prior year, we indicated that the cpportunity to commit and conceal fraud exists where there are assets
susceptible to misappropriation and inadequate controls o prevent or detect the fraud. To address this risk, we
recommended that the City perform a risk assessment to identify, analyze, and manage the risk of asset
misappropriation. Risk assessment, including fraud risk assessment, is one element of internal control. Thus,
ideally, the City's internal control should include performance of this assessment, even though our annual
financial statement audits include consideration of fraud. We recommended that management complete the
development and implementation of a fraud risk assessment program to identify, analyze, and manage the risk of
asset misappropriation.

Current Status

The City Auditor has drafted an anti-fraud policy; however it has not been presented to the City Council for review
and approval. Additionally, the City has not performed a fraud risk assessment.

Continuing Recommendation

We continue to recommend that the City perform a fraud risk assessment to identify, analyze, and manage the
risk of asset misappropriation.



RESOLVE CREDIT REAL ESTATE RECEIVABLE BALANCES

Prior Year Comment

In the prior year, we indicated that there were several old real estate tax receivable accounts (fiscal 2001 — 2006)
that had credit balances totaling $206,000. As of June 30, 2014, the credit real estate accounts (fiscal 2001 -
2008) totaled $221,000. The Treasurer/Collector believes that the underlying reason for the credi balances
relates to the timeliness in which the City processes taxpayer over-payments. These transactions should be
processed on a timelier basis so that taxpayers are receiving proper credit for their payments and so that the
general ledger is reporting the correct receivable balances.

Current Status
The credit balances increased by $15,000 in fiscal 2014, No significant progress was made to resolve this matter,

Continuing Recommendsation

We continue to recommend that the City investigate these credit balances and implement procedures to prevent
credit receivable balances from occurring in the future. We alsc recommend that once the cause of the credit
balances is determined that the appropriate action is taken to resolve them.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Prior Year Comment

in the prior year, we indicated that the City's system for fracking and reporting the available sick and vacation
palances is inefficient. The City does not maintain an automated perpetual balance of each employee’s sick and
vacation balance. Therefore, the calculation of this accrual at fiscal year-end (and at any time duting the year) is
done manually.

These balances are not only essential in the preparation of the City's basic financials statements, but they are
essential in attendance controt.

Current Status
The City is in the process of updating its payroll software to automatically gather this information. However, this
application was not available for the current year audit and, conseguently, the data was required to be compiled

using an excel spreadsheet,

Continuing Recommendation

We encourage the City to continue to pursue its goal of automating the accumuiation and reporting of sick and
vacation accruals,



POLICE DETAIL

Prior Year Comment

In the prior year, we were unable to obtain support for the police detail amount reported in the general ledger. We
also noted that the general ledger balance has not been updated since fiscal 2008. Currently there are no formal
reconciliation procedures between the Police Department and the City Auditor's Office for police detail
receivables. The summary outstanding batance reported in the general ledger should be reconciied each month
to the detail maintained by the Police Department. Updating and reconciling the general ledger receivable
balance to the subsidiary ledger is an important control that provides a check and balance on the activily posted
to the subsidiary ledger.

Current Status
We were not provided with supporting documentation for the police detail receivable balance reported on the
general ledger. The general ledger receivable balance totaled approximately $417,000 and has not changed

since fiscal 2008.

Continuing Recommendation

We continue recommend that the City Auditor's Office be provided with monthly reports showing the police detall
activity for the period and that the City Auditor updates the general ledger receivable balance to refiect the
monthly activity. Once the activity is recorded, the general ledger receivable balance should be reconciled to the
subsidiary receivable balance maintained by the police department. Any write-offs should be signed-off and
approved at the proper levels of management.

GENERAL LEDGER JOURNAL ENTRIES

Pricr Year Comment

in the prior year, we noted that journal entries are generally used to record year-end accruals, to reclassify
fransactions and fo record non-cash transactions. During our audit, we reviewed several of the general ledger
journal entries and found that the supporting documentation was not aiways readily available. However, the
supporting documentation was eventually compited and provided.

It is important to maintain supporting documentation with the journal entries in the event that turnover occurs in
key financial position or an individual is out of work for an extended period of time. The supperting documentation
may be needed to make an internal decision and may also be needed by an outside agency such as federal, state
or independent auditors. Having supporting documentation readily available and filed numerically with copies of
the journal entries will protect the City in the event that such a situation arises.

Current Status

Similar results were noted while completing our current year journal entry testing.

Continuing Recommendsation

We continue fo recommend that the journal entries are filed in & central location, by journal entry number, with
supporting documentation attached to each journal entry. If there is no supporting documentation for the journat
entry, we recommend that a memo is written and attached to describe the purpese for the entry.



INDIRECT COST ALLOCATION

Prior Year Comment

In the prior year, we indicated that the general fund provides services and pays for certain fringe benefits for its
enterprise operations. Itis sound business practice to complete a cost allocation plan te charge the enterprise
funds for their share of these costs. If a properly approved and supported cost aliocation plan is not used {o
calculate these charges, then the City is at risk that the enterprise funds are not being charged their fair share of
expenses. The City allocates indirect costs based on percentages that have been utilized for several years. ltis
good business practice to periodically review indirect cost allocations to ensure that the rates being applied are
stilt applicable to the current situation.

Current Siatus

The City has not analyzed its cost allocation plan in several years to ensure that the rates being applied are still
applicable,

Continuing Recommendation

We continue to recommend that the City develop a cost allocation plan that identifies all fringe benefits and
overhead departmenis that support each enterprise fund. The plan should include:

= Direct and indirect charges used to calculate the allocable cost of the overhead department.

s The appropriate base to allocate the specific cost.

» identifying costs that can use actual direct charges for specific expenses.

«  Arequired year-end reconcitiation of the estimated budget allocation to the actual results of operations.






FUTURE GOVERNMENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD {GASB) STATEMENTS FOR PENSIONS AND
OPEB

Comment

The GASRE has issued new pronouncements that will significantly affect the accounting and reporting
requirements for Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB). These new standards will start to phase
in during 2015 and will substantially impact the City's financial statements and will also affect the requirements for
accumuiating the necessary data to meet the reporting requirements.

The new standards that have been issued and their effective dates are as follows:

e The GASB issued Statement #87, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 25, which is required to be implemented in 2016&.

e The GASB issued Statement #68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27, which is required to be implemented in 2015,

The GASB is expected to issue additional standards foliowing #67 & #68 for Pensions, which will similariy affect
accounting and financial reporting for OPEB Plans. The GASB is encouraging earlier application of these
standards. To briefly summarize these new standards —

¥ GASB #567 and #68 will substantially change the reporting for pension liabilities and expenses. Changes
in pensicn liability wil be immediately recognized as pension expense or reported as deferred
outflowsfinflows of resources depending on the nature of the changes. Substantial changes to methods
and assumptions used to determine actuarial information for GAAP reporting purposes will be required.
Current actuarial methods may continue to be used to determine funding amounts. Employers will report
in their financial statements a net pension liability (asset) determined annually as of the fiscal year end.
Net pension liabifity (asset} equals the iotal pension liability for the plan net of the plan net position.
Pension liability is the actuarial present value of projected benefits atiributed to past service, and plan net
position is the accumuiated plan assets net of any financial statement liabilities of the plan.

The City should expect to record significant pension and OPEB liabilities in the future.

Recommendation

While the most significant changes from these GASB’s do not go into effect until 2015, we wanted to make the
City aware of the magnitude these changes will have on financial statement reporting and disclosures. The City
shouid pian to meet with your actuaries and financial advisers as more information becormnes available. You may
also want to consider how and when this information should be communicated {o financial statement users.
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